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April 2025 
 
 
To our Shareholders: 
 

 On behalf of the Board of Directors, Officers, and Employees, I am pleased to have this opportunity to 
report to you on the progress and strength of your Community Bank.  The accompanying statements present 
the financial status of the Jim Thorpe Neighborhood Bank and reflect our continued efforts and success in 
maintaining positive financial results and growth.  We are proud to continue the tradition of being a strong, 
independent community bank that provides superior banking services to our communities. 

 
Financial Snapshot 
                                                                                                                                                                                                       

Net income for the year-ended December 31, 2024 was $1,774,000 or $1.87 per share.  Earnings 
comparable to prior year are 22.6% higher and are mainly attributed to increased total Interest Income and 
increased Net Interest Income versus prior year. 

 

Total assets at December 31, 2024, were $260.9 million, an increase of $12.7 million or 5.1% and 
deposits totaled $241.9 million, which increased by $11.7 million or 5.1%.  The total deposit increase is 
attributed to the growth of our customer base and market share, enhancing core deposits in consumer, 
business and public funds.   

 

Total shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2024, was $18.1 million, an increase of $1.0 million or 5.4% 
over prior year due to increased Retained Earnings while accumulated other comprehensive income decreased 
which included a small increase in the unrealized loss in the investment portfolio.  

 

Net loans outstanding totaled $126.3 million, an increase of $5.7 million or 4.7%.  The net loan increase 
was mainly due to increased Commercial Real Estate Loans, and a modest increase in Residential Real Estate 
Loans.  Despite a challenging rate environment that slowed demand, particularly in the residential mortgage 
market, we were successful in growing our loan portfolio.  Though some institutions pulled back on lending due 
to funding challenges, JTNB remained in a good position with excess liquidity enabling us to meet the needs of 
our customers and take advantage of other market opportunities. 

 

Investments totaled $87.2 million, which decreased by $5.7 million or 6.1% over the prior year.  The 
decrease in investments was due to the maturity of securities.  At this time, we opted to keep this in cash 
earning a higher rate of return and to fund commercial loans.  Cash and Cash Equivalents totaled $37.4 million, 
which increased by $13.6 million or 57.1% over the prior year.  Borrowed funds were $0 for year-end 2024 and 
$0 for year-end 2023.  

 

Non-accrual loans totaled $14,800 which represents 0.01% of the total loan portfolio.  Our credit quality 
remains high.  JTNB’s loan portfolio and asset quality remain good despite the challenges of the economic 
environment.  Through sound business practices and sensible underwriting standards, our loan portfolio 
continues to perform well.   

 

Dividends paid for 2024 totaled $0.54 per share, an approximate 4.3% yield on your investment, 
delivering consistent ongoing returns to our shareholders.  The dividend of $0.54 per share was a 3.8% increase 
over the prior year regular dividend of $0.52 per share.  JTNB’s conservative and disciplined business 
philosophy enables us to continue our mission by providing a strong return for our shareholders without 
impairing capital.  

JTNB Bancorp, Inc. 
12 Broadway 

Jim Thorpe, PA  18229   
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The Jim Thorpe Neighborhood Bank continues to be "safe and sound" and is well capitalized, exceeding 
all regulatory requirements.  Tier 1 capital to average assets was 9.14% and total capital to risk-weighted assets 
was 20.66% versus the 5.00% and 10.00%, respectively, required by regulators to be well capitalized.   

 
Customer Expectation/Technology Investments 
 

Our business is built around an unwavering focus on customer satisfaction.  The future of banking 
success will be built around technology and the ability of community banks, in particular, to adapt this 
technology to customer expectation.  JTNB has committed to and invested in the following projects in order to 
provide the latest technology services to our customers. 

 

• Digital Wallet – The use of digital wallets in the U.S. is on the rise, and they’re becoming an essential 
consideration for community banks.  A report by Worldpay shows that in the United States, digital 
wallets accounted for 37% of all e-commerce transactions and 15% of all POS transactions in 2023. 
Those numbers are expected to increase by 2027 to 52% and 31%, respectively. 
 

• New & Enhanced Website – Watch for our new and improved website coming this May! 
 

Achievements & Community Commitment 
 

 Once again, JTNB has earned a 5-Star Superior Rating from BauerFinancial, the Nation’s Premier Bank 
Rating Firm.  To earn Bauer’s Highest 5-Star Superior Rating, Jim Thorpe Neighborhood Bank must excel in areas 
of capital adequacy, profitability, loan quality, and more.  This marks the 142nd consecutive quarter, as of March 
2025, that Jim Thorpe Neighborhood Bank has earned Bauer’s recommendation of 5-Stars or 4-Stars. 

 

As a true community bank, we take pride in reinvesting in the communities that we serve.  We 
encourage and support our employees to participate through volunteerism and community involvement.  
Financial contributions were distributed to more than 200 organizations benefitting seniors, veterans, youth 
groups, churches, and community events as well as educational and healthcare systems to name a few.  JTNB 
is recognized and respected for being a good corporate citizen and our staff takes great pride and passion in 
their services to the community.   
 
Final Thoughts 

 

JTNB remains true to its community bank philosophy and conservative financial principals.  That has 
been our foundation and hallmark that has successfully sustained us for over 170 years.  I am proud of the 
effort given and the results achieved by our dedicated team.  Managing a successful community bank is an 
ongoing process.  Each year we set our goals to enhance shareholder value and meet the needs of our 
customers, employees, and communities.  We believe 2024 was a good year for all.   

 

The annual meeting of JTNB Bancorp, Inc. is scheduled for Wednesday, May 14, 2025 
, in the Broadway Underground Meeting Room, located at 24 Broadway, Jim Thorpe.  

Light refreshments will be served at 9:30 a.m. prior to commencement of the meeting.  The Board of Directors 
thanks you, our shareholders, for your continued support and appreciates your confidence in us as we look 
forward to the coming year.  

 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
 
Craig A. Zurn 
Chief Executive Officer  
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5-Star Jim Thorpe Neighborhood Bank 
A Source of Security in an Insecure World 

 

Jim Thorpe, Pennsylvania – March 2025: Jim Thorpe Neighborhood Bank, Jim Thorpe, PA 
proudly acknowledges that it has received a 5-Star Superior rating from BauerFinancial, Inc., 
the Nation’s Premier Bank Rating Firm.  A 5-Star Superior Rating indicates that Jim Thorpe 
Neighborhood Bank is one of the strongest banks in the nation, excelling in areas of capital, 
loan quality, profitability and more.  This marks the 142nd consecutive quarter that Jim Thorpe 
Neighborhood Bank has earned a recommended rating (5-Stars or 4-Stars) from Bauer.  
 

“A lot of things are changing”, reflects Karen Dorway, president of BauerFinancial. “Rules 
and regulations are being retooled, technology is advancing at lightning speed, and it is easy 
to feel like you’re getting lost in the fray,” she continues.  “People don’t want to feel like that 
at their bank.  When they walk into a branch, they want to feel confident that their deposits 
are safe, that all rules are being followed, and that their banker understands their specific 
needs.  That’s why it is so important to have 5-Star rated (Superior) banks, like Jim Thorpe 
Neighborhood Bank, in our communities.  We can be confident that they have our hard-
earned deposits properly secured.” 
 

Since its inception in 1855, Jim Thorpe Neighborhood Bank has been meeting the specific 
needs of the people in the communities it serves for 170 years.  You can be proud to call Jim 
Thorpe Neighborhood Bank your bank. 
 

Jim Thorpe Neighborhood Bank: “A Real Community Bank®” 
www.jtnb.com 

 

   
 
 

Bank and Credit Union data compiled from financial data for the period noted, as reported to federal regulators. The financial data obtained 
from these sources is consistently reliable, although; the accuracy and completeness of the data cannot be guaranteed by BauerFinancial, 
Inc. Since 1983, BauerFinancial has relied upon this data in its judgment and in rendering its opinion (e.g. determination of star ratings). 
BauerFinancial, Inc. is not a financial advisor; it is an independent bank research firm. No institution can pay for or opt out of a BauerFinancial 
rating. Star-ratings are all available for free at bauerfinancial.com. 

 
BAUERFINANCIAL, INC. P.O. Box 143520, Coral Gables, FL 33114    www.bauerfinancial.com 
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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of 
JTNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of JTNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary (Corporation),
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related 
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders' equity and cash flows for the years 
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Corporation as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and 
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required 
to be independent of the Corporation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Corporation's ability 
to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are 
available to be issued.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

 

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 
April 7, 2025 
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2024 2023

Assets

Cash and due from banks 9,779,722$        6,390,231$        
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 27,577,391        17,422,221        

Cash and cash equivalents 37,357,113        23,812,452        

Securities available-for-sale, at fair value 29,467,916        40,084,399        
Mortgage-backed securities available-for-sale, at fair value 57,731,759        52,806,579        
Loans, net 126,319,881      120,561,757      
Restricted equity securities 329,665             346,565             
Bank-owned life insurance 4,293,200          4,480,344          
Accrued interest receivable 706,993             727,305             
Premises and equipment, net 1,349,332          1,397,108          
Goodwill 861,746             861,746             
Deferred income taxes, net 2,103,624          2,033,319          
Other assets 356,689             1,070,891          

Total assets 260,877,918$    248,182,465$    

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Liabilities
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing 62,022,576$      58,015,223$      
Interest-bearing 179,892,772      172,142,253      

Total deposits 241,915,348      230,157,476      

Deferred Compensation Payable 13,655               53,521               

Accrued Interest Payable 138,241             134,957             

Other Liabilities 750,614             709,749             

Total liabilities 242,817,858      231,055,703      

Shareholders' Equity
Common stock, par value $0.334; 6,000,000 shares

authorized; 951,557 shares issued in 2024 and 2023;
944,363 shares outstanding in 2024 and 946,095 in 2023 317,820             317,820             

Additional paid-in capital 1,864,152          1,873,907          
Retained earnings 23,340,734        22,078,247        
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (7,381,908)        (7,062,398)        
Treasury stock, at cost (7,194 shares in 2024 and 5,462 

shares in 2023) (80,738)             (80,814)             

Total shareholders' equity 18,060,060        17,126,762        

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 260,877,918$    248,182,465$    

JTNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2024 and 2023

See notes to consolidated financial statements
3

2024 2023

Interest Income
Loans 5,891,098$        5,020,760$        
Taxable investments 2,536,597          2,117,202          
Tax-exempt investments 200,627             205,876             
Deposits with banks 1,006,353          726,966             

Total interest income 9,634,675          8,070,804          

Interest Expense
NOW and money market accounts 1,172,225          628,867             
Savings accounts 51,688               54,141               
Time deposits 1,559,025          1,060,665          
Borrowings 48                      95,662               

Total interest expense 2,782,986          1,839,335          

Net interest income before credit to allowance for credit losses 6,851,689          6,231,469          

Credit to Allowance for Credit Losses -                        (60,000)             

Net interest income after credit to allowance for credit losses 6,851,689          6,291,469          

Noninterest Income
Service charges on deposit accounts 223,702             228,955             
Other service charges and fees 391,589             392,077             
Income on bank-owned life insurance 236,140             110,937             
Gain on life insurance 7,513                 169,890             

Total noninterest income 858,944             901,859             

Noninterest Expense
Salaries and employee benefits 3,298,117          3,279,158          
Data processing fees 316,312             329,168             
Occupancy expense 262,910             278,468             
Professional fees 273,214             257,653             
Shares tax expense 144,913             112,897             
Directors' fees and compensation expense 224,884             204,408             
Computer software maintenance 202,445             192,704             
Telecommunications expense 161,843             152,058             
Furniture and equipment expense 104,991             120,587             
FDIC assessment 115,000             123,667             
Other operating expenses 515,715             483,160             

Total noninterest expense 5,620,344          5,533,928          

Income before income tax expense 2,090,289          1,659,400          

Income Tax Expense 316,505             211,964             

Net income 1,773,784$        1,447,436$        

Earnings Per Share 1.87$                 1.53$                 

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding 946,908             945,093             

JTNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

See notes to consolidated financial statements
4
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Cash and cash equivalents 37,357,113        23,812,452        

Securities available-for-sale, at fair value 29,467,916        40,084,399        
Mortgage-backed securities available-for-sale, at fair value 57,731,759        52,806,579        
Loans, net 126,319,881      120,561,757      
Restricted equity securities 329,665             346,565             
Bank-owned life insurance 4,293,200          4,480,344          
Accrued interest receivable 706,993             727,305             
Premises and equipment, net 1,349,332          1,397,108          
Goodwill 861,746             861,746             
Deferred income taxes, net 2,103,624          2,033,319          
Other assets 356,689             1,070,891          

Total assets 260,877,918$    248,182,465$    

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Liabilities
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing 62,022,576$      58,015,223$      
Interest-bearing 179,892,772      172,142,253      

Total deposits 241,915,348      230,157,476      

Deferred Compensation Payable 13,655               53,521               

Accrued Interest Payable 138,241             134,957             

Other Liabilities 750,614             709,749             

Total liabilities 242,817,858      231,055,703      

Shareholders' Equity
Common stock, par value $0.334; 6,000,000 shares

authorized; 951,557 shares issued in 2024 and 2023;
944,363 shares outstanding in 2024 and 946,095 in 2023 317,820             317,820             

Additional paid-in capital 1,864,152          1,873,907          
Retained earnings 23,340,734        22,078,247        
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (7,381,908)        (7,062,398)        
Treasury stock, at cost (7,194 shares in 2024 and 5,462 

shares in 2023) (80,738)             (80,814)             

Total shareholders' equity 18,060,060        17,126,762        

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 260,877,918$    248,182,465$    

JTNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2024 and 2023

See notes to consolidated financial statements
3

2024 2023

Interest Income
Loans 5,891,098$        5,020,760$        
Taxable investments 2,536,597          2,117,202          
Tax-exempt investments 200,627             205,876             
Deposits with banks 1,006,353          726,966             

Total interest income 9,634,675          8,070,804          

Interest Expense
NOW and money market accounts 1,172,225          628,867             
Savings accounts 51,688               54,141               
Time deposits 1,559,025          1,060,665          
Borrowings 48                      95,662               

Total interest expense 2,782,986          1,839,335          

Net interest income before credit to allowance for credit losses 6,851,689          6,231,469          

Credit to Allowance for Credit Losses -                        (60,000)             

Net interest income after credit to allowance for credit losses 6,851,689          6,291,469          

Noninterest Income
Service charges on deposit accounts 223,702             228,955             
Other service charges and fees 391,589             392,077             
Income on bank-owned life insurance 236,140             110,937             
Gain on life insurance 7,513                 169,890             

Total noninterest income 858,944             901,859             

Noninterest Expense
Salaries and employee benefits 3,298,117          3,279,158          
Data processing fees 316,312             329,168             
Occupancy expense 262,910             278,468             
Professional fees 273,214             257,653             
Shares tax expense 144,913             112,897             
Directors' fees and compensation expense 224,884             204,408             
Computer software maintenance 202,445             192,704             
Telecommunications expense 161,843             152,058             
Furniture and equipment expense 104,991             120,587             
FDIC assessment 115,000             123,667             
Other operating expenses 515,715             483,160             

Total noninterest expense 5,620,344          5,533,928          

Income before income tax expense 2,090,289          1,659,400          

Income Tax Expense 316,505             211,964             

Net income 1,773,784$        1,447,436$        

Earnings Per Share 1.87$                 1.53$                 

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding 946,908             945,093             

JTNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

See notes to consolidated financial statements
4



2024 2023

1,773,784$        1,447,436$        

(319,510)           1,779,551          

(319,510)           1,779,551          

1,454,274$        3,226,987$        

JTNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Net Income

Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income
Unrealized holding (losses) gains on securities available-for-sale,

net of tax of $84,933 in 2024 and $473,045 in 2023

Total other comprehensive (loss) income

Total comprehensive income

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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2024 2023

1,773,784$        1,447,436$        

(319,510)           1,779,551          

(319,510)           1,779,551          

1,454,274$        3,226,987$        

JTNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Net Income

Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income
Unrealized holding (losses) gains on securities available-for-sale,

net of tax of $84,933 in 2024 and $473,045 in 2023

Total other comprehensive (loss) income

Total comprehensive income

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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2024 2023

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income 1,773,784$       1,447,436$       
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

by operating activities:
Credit to allowance for credit losses -                        (60,000)             
Depreciation 121,690            127,512            
Net amortization (accretion) of securities and loan fees and costs 60,168              (38,762)             
Deferred compensation expense (39,866)             2,976                
Deferred income taxes 14,629              12,174              
Gain on life insurance (7,513)               (169,890)           
Income on bank-owned life insurance (236,140)           (110,937)           
Net change in:

Accrued interest receivable 20,312              (44,878)             
Other assets 714,202            (234,292)           
Deferred compensation payable -                        (41,281)             
Accrued interest payable 3,284                64,822              
Other liabilities 22,169              (32,109)             

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,446,719         922,771            

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of securities available-for-sale (4,998,140)        -                        
Proceeds from maturities, calls and principal repayments of

securities available-for-sale 15,670,000       15,890,036       
Purchases of mortgage-backed securities available-for-sale (13,528,439)      (12,289,564)      
Proceeds from principal repayments of mortgage-backed

securities available-for-sale 8,072,867         4,671,257         
Purchases of restricted stock (4,000)               (59,500)             
Proceeds from redemption of restricted equity securities 20,900              247,600            
Proceeds from life insurance 426,915            -                        
Premiums paid on bank-owned life insurance 3,882                (7,429)               
Net change in loans (5,747,721)        2,143,591         
Purchases of premises and equipment (73,914)             (36,637)             

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (157,650)           10,559,354       

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Net increase in deposits 11,757,872       5,105,639         
Repayment of borrowings -                        (5,000,000)        
Purchase of treasury stock (195,434)           (28,855)             
Sale of treasury stock 136,902            -                        
Dividends paid (443,748)           (387,848)           

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 11,255,592       (311,064)           

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 13,544,661       11,171,061       

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 23,812,452       12,641,391       

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending 37,357,113$     23,812,452$     

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest 2,779,702$       1,774,513$       

Income taxes paid 305,000$          179,412$          

JTNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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JTNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2024 and 2023 
 

8 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JTNB Bancorp, Inc. (Bancorp) and its 
wholly owned subsidiary, Jim Thorpe Neighborhood Bank (Bank), (collectively, the Corporation). All 
material intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Nature of Operations 

The Corporation provides a full range of commercial banking services to individual and small 
business customers in Carbon County, Pennsylvania, and the surrounding counties. The 
Corporation's primary deposit products are demand deposits and interest-bearing time and savings 
accounts. It offers a full array of loan products to meet the needs of retail and commercial customers. 

The Bank is subject to regulation by the Pennsylvania Department of Banking and Securities and its 
deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Bancorp is subject to 
regulation by the Federal Reserve Board.  

Significant Concentrations of Credit Risk 

The Corporation grants loans to customers primarily in Carbon County and the surrounding counties  
of Pennsylvania. Although the Corporation has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its 
debtors' ability to honor their contracts is dependent on the economic conditions in its marketplace. 
The Corporation does not have any significant concentrations from one industry or borrower.  

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported 
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of 
the allowance for credit losses, the valuation of investment securities and determination of credit 
losses thereon, and valuation of deferred tax assets.  

Accounting Standard Adopted in 2024 

On January 1, 2024, the Corporation adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2023-07, 
Segment Reporting—Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures (Topic 280). This ASU 
requires disclosure of incremental segment information on an annual basis for all public entities, 
including entities with one reportable segment. Such incremental disclosures include information 
about significant segment expenses, how chief operating decision makers (CODM) measure a 
segment's profit or loss, and qualitative information about how a CODM assesses segment 
performance. The Corporation adopted the provisions of the ASU effective January 1, 2024. As the 
Corporation has only one reportable segment (community banking segment), this ASU did not have a 
material effect on the Corporation's consolidated financial statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include amounts due from 
depository institutions and interest-bearing deposits with other banks with original maturities of less 
than 90 days.  



2024 2023

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income 1,773,784$       1,447,436$       
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

by operating activities:
Credit to allowance for credit losses -                        (60,000)             
Depreciation 121,690            127,512            
Net amortization (accretion) of securities and loan fees and costs 60,168              (38,762)             
Deferred compensation expense (39,866)             2,976                
Deferred income taxes 14,629              12,174              
Gain on life insurance (7,513)               (169,890)           
Income on bank-owned life insurance (236,140)           (110,937)           
Net change in:

Accrued interest receivable 20,312              (44,878)             
Other assets 714,202            (234,292)           
Deferred compensation payable -                        (41,281)             
Accrued interest payable 3,284                64,822              
Other liabilities 22,169              (32,109)             

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,446,719         922,771            

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of securities available-for-sale (4,998,140)        -                        
Proceeds from maturities, calls and principal repayments of

securities available-for-sale 15,670,000       15,890,036       
Purchases of mortgage-backed securities available-for-sale (13,528,439)      (12,289,564)      
Proceeds from principal repayments of mortgage-backed

securities available-for-sale 8,072,867         4,671,257         
Purchases of restricted stock (4,000)               (59,500)             
Proceeds from redemption of restricted equity securities 20,900              247,600            
Proceeds from life insurance 426,915            -                        
Premiums paid on bank-owned life insurance 3,882                (7,429)               
Net change in loans (5,747,721)        2,143,591         
Purchases of premises and equipment (73,914)             (36,637)             

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (157,650)           10,559,354       

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Net increase in deposits 11,757,872       5,105,639         
Repayment of borrowings -                        (5,000,000)        
Purchase of treasury stock (195,434)           (28,855)             
Sale of treasury stock 136,902            -                        
Dividends paid (443,748)           (387,848)           

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 11,255,592       (311,064)           

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 13,544,661       11,171,061       

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 23,812,452       12,641,391       

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending 37,357,113$     23,812,452$     

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest 2,779,702$       1,774,513$       

Income taxes paid 305,000$          179,412$          

JTNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JTNB Bancorp, Inc. (Bancorp) and its 
wholly owned subsidiary, Jim Thorpe Neighborhood Bank (Bank), (collectively, the Corporation). All 
material intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Nature of Operations 

The Corporation provides a full range of commercial banking services to individual and small 
business customers in Carbon County, Pennsylvania, and the surrounding counties. The 
Corporation's primary deposit products are demand deposits and interest-bearing time and savings 
accounts. It offers a full array of loan products to meet the needs of retail and commercial customers. 

The Bank is subject to regulation by the Pennsylvania Department of Banking and Securities and its 
deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Bancorp is subject to 
regulation by the Federal Reserve Board.  

Significant Concentrations of Credit Risk 

The Corporation grants loans to customers primarily in Carbon County and the surrounding counties  
of Pennsylvania. Although the Corporation has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its 
debtors' ability to honor their contracts is dependent on the economic conditions in its marketplace. 
The Corporation does not have any significant concentrations from one industry or borrower.  

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported 
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of 
the allowance for credit losses, the valuation of investment securities and determination of credit 
losses thereon, and valuation of deferred tax assets.  

Accounting Standard Adopted in 2024 

On January 1, 2024, the Corporation adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2023-07, 
Segment Reporting—Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures (Topic 280). This ASU 
requires disclosure of incremental segment information on an annual basis for all public entities, 
including entities with one reportable segment. Such incremental disclosures include information 
about significant segment expenses, how chief operating decision makers (CODM) measure a 
segment's profit or loss, and qualitative information about how a CODM assesses segment 
performance. The Corporation adopted the provisions of the ASU effective January 1, 2024. As the 
Corporation has only one reportable segment (community banking segment), this ASU did not have a 
material effect on the Corporation's consolidated financial statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include amounts due from 
depository institutions and interest-bearing deposits with other banks with original maturities of less 
than 90 days.  
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Securities and Mortgage-Backed Securities 

Debt securities acquired with the intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as securities  
held-to-maturity and reported at amortized cost. Debt securities not classified as held-to-maturity 
securities are classified as securities available-for-sale and reported at fair value, with unrealized 
gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income (loss).  

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over 
the terms of the securities. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date 
and are determined using the specific identification method. Declines in the fair value of securities 
below their costs that are deemed to be credit-related are reflected in earnings as realized losses. 

Allowance for Credit Losses - Available-for-Sale Securities 

For available-for-sale securities in an unrealized loss position, the Corporation first assesses whether 
it intends to sell, or it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell the security before recovery 
of its amortized cost basis. If either criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met, the security's 
amortized cost basis is written down to fair value through income. For available-for-sale securities 
that do not meet the aforementioned criteria, the Corporation evaluates whether the decline in fair 
value has resulted from credit losses or other factors. In making this assessment, management 
considers the extent to which fair value is less than amortized cost, any changes to the rating of the 
security by a rating agency, and adverse conditions specifically related to the security, among other 
factors. If this assessment indicates that a credit loss exists, the present value of cash flows expected 
to be collected from the security are compared to the amortized cost basis of the security. If present 
value of cash flows expected to be collected is less than the amortized cost basis, a credit loss exists 
and an allowance for credit losses (ACL) is recorded for the credit loss, limited by the amount that the 
fair value is less than the amortized cost basis. Any impairment that has not been recorded through 
an allowance for credit losses is recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). 

Changes in the allowance for credit losses are recorded as credit loss expense (or reversal).  
Losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of an  
available-for-sale security is confirmed or when either of the criteria regarding intent or requirement to 
sell is met. 

The Corporation made a policy election to exclude accrued interest receivable from amortized cost 
basis of securities available-for-sale. Accrued interest receivable on available-for-sale securities is 
reported as a component of accrued interest receivable on the consolidated balance sheets, totaled 
$368,041 at December 31, 2024 and $412,083 at December 31, 2023 and is excluded from the 
estimate of credit losses. 

Loans 

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or 
payoff are stated at their outstanding unpaid principal balances, net of an allowance for credit losses 
and any deferred fees or costs. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan 
origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized as an adjustment 
of the related loan yield over the contractual life of the loan using the interest method.  

The loans receivable portfolio is segmented into following classes: construction real estate, 
commercial real estate, residential real estate, commercial, other consumer and municipal loans. The 
segments of the Corporation's loan portfolio are disaggregated to a level that allows management to 
monitor risk and performance. Common risk characteristics include loan type, collateral type, and 
geographic location. 
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Generally, the accrual of interest is discontinued when the contractual payment of principal or interest 
has become 90 days past due or management has serious doubts about further collectability of 
principal or interest, even though the loan is currently performing. A loan may remain on accrual 
status if it is in the process of collection and is either guaranteed or well secured. When a loan is 
placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid interest is reversed against interest income. Interest received on 
nonaccrual loans, including substandard loans, is either applied against principal or reported as 
interest income, according to management's judgment as to the collectability of principal. Generally, 
loans are restored to accrual status when the obligation is brought current, has performed in 
accordance with the contractual terms for a reasonable period of time (generally six months) and the 
ultimate collectability of the total contractual principal and interest is no longer in doubt. The past due 
status of all classes of loans receivable is determined based on contractual due dates for loan 
payments. 

Allowance for Credit Losses - Loans 

The allowance for credit losses is a valuation account that is recorded as a reduction of the amortized 
cost basis of loans to present the net amount expected to be collected on the loans. Loans are 
charged-off against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of a loan balance 
is confirmed.  

The allowance is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for losses that can be 
reasonably anticipated. Management performs a quarterly evaluation of the adequacy of the 
allowance. The allowance is estimated using relevant available information from both internal and 
external sources relating to past events (including the Corporation's past credit loss experience), 
current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts.  

The allowance for credit losses is measured on a collective (pool) basis when similar characteristics 
exist. The Corporation has identified the following portfolio segments and measures the allowance for 
credit losses using the SCALE method: construction real estate, commercial real estate, residential 
real estate, commercial, other consumer and municipal loans. These pools of loans are evaluated for 
loss exposure based upon historical loss rates for each of these categories of loans, adjusted for 
qualitative factors.  

These qualitative risk factors include: 

1. Delinquency trends 

2. Volume trends concerning the portfolio and terms of loans 

3. Changes to lending policies and procedures, including underwriting standards and collection, 
charge-off and recovery practices 

4. Experience, ability, and depth of lending management and staff 

5. National, regional, and local economic and business conditions as well as the condition of 
various market segments, including the value of underlying collateral for collateral dependent 
loans 

6. Existence and effect of any concentrations of credit and changes in the level of such 
concentrations 

7. Quality of the Corporation's loan review system, and the degree of oversight by the 
Corporation's Board of Directors 

8. Collateral values 

9. Effect of external factors, such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements 
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Securities and Mortgage-Backed Securities 

Debt securities acquired with the intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as securities  
held-to-maturity and reported at amortized cost. Debt securities not classified as held-to-maturity 
securities are classified as securities available-for-sale and reported at fair value, with unrealized 
gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income (loss).  

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over 
the terms of the securities. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date 
and are determined using the specific identification method. Declines in the fair value of securities 
below their costs that are deemed to be credit-related are reflected in earnings as realized losses. 

Allowance for Credit Losses - Available-for-Sale Securities 

For available-for-sale securities in an unrealized loss position, the Corporation first assesses whether 
it intends to sell, or it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell the security before recovery 
of its amortized cost basis. If either criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met, the security's 
amortized cost basis is written down to fair value through income. For available-for-sale securities 
that do not meet the aforementioned criteria, the Corporation evaluates whether the decline in fair 
value has resulted from credit losses or other factors. In making this assessment, management 
considers the extent to which fair value is less than amortized cost, any changes to the rating of the 
security by a rating agency, and adverse conditions specifically related to the security, among other 
factors. If this assessment indicates that a credit loss exists, the present value of cash flows expected 
to be collected from the security are compared to the amortized cost basis of the security. If present 
value of cash flows expected to be collected is less than the amortized cost basis, a credit loss exists 
and an allowance for credit losses (ACL) is recorded for the credit loss, limited by the amount that the 
fair value is less than the amortized cost basis. Any impairment that has not been recorded through 
an allowance for credit losses is recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). 

Changes in the allowance for credit losses are recorded as credit loss expense (or reversal).  
Losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of an  
available-for-sale security is confirmed or when either of the criteria regarding intent or requirement to 
sell is met. 

The Corporation made a policy election to exclude accrued interest receivable from amortized cost 
basis of securities available-for-sale. Accrued interest receivable on available-for-sale securities is 
reported as a component of accrued interest receivable on the consolidated balance sheets, totaled 
$368,041 at December 31, 2024 and $412,083 at December 31, 2023 and is excluded from the 
estimate of credit losses. 

Loans 

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or 
payoff are stated at their outstanding unpaid principal balances, net of an allowance for credit losses 
and any deferred fees or costs. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan 
origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized as an adjustment 
of the related loan yield over the contractual life of the loan using the interest method.  

The loans receivable portfolio is segmented into following classes: construction real estate, 
commercial real estate, residential real estate, commercial, other consumer and municipal loans. The 
segments of the Corporation's loan portfolio are disaggregated to a level that allows management to 
monitor risk and performance. Common risk characteristics include loan type, collateral type, and 
geographic location. 
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Generally, the accrual of interest is discontinued when the contractual payment of principal or interest 
has become 90 days past due or management has serious doubts about further collectability of 
principal or interest, even though the loan is currently performing. A loan may remain on accrual 
status if it is in the process of collection and is either guaranteed or well secured. When a loan is 
placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid interest is reversed against interest income. Interest received on 
nonaccrual loans, including substandard loans, is either applied against principal or reported as 
interest income, according to management's judgment as to the collectability of principal. Generally, 
loans are restored to accrual status when the obligation is brought current, has performed in 
accordance with the contractual terms for a reasonable period of time (generally six months) and the 
ultimate collectability of the total contractual principal and interest is no longer in doubt. The past due 
status of all classes of loans receivable is determined based on contractual due dates for loan 
payments. 

Allowance for Credit Losses - Loans 

The allowance for credit losses is a valuation account that is recorded as a reduction of the amortized 
cost basis of loans to present the net amount expected to be collected on the loans. Loans are 
charged-off against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of a loan balance 
is confirmed.  

The allowance is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for losses that can be 
reasonably anticipated. Management performs a quarterly evaluation of the adequacy of the 
allowance. The allowance is estimated using relevant available information from both internal and 
external sources relating to past events (including the Corporation's past credit loss experience), 
current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts.  

The allowance for credit losses is measured on a collective (pool) basis when similar characteristics 
exist. The Corporation has identified the following portfolio segments and measures the allowance for 
credit losses using the SCALE method: construction real estate, commercial real estate, residential 
real estate, commercial, other consumer and municipal loans. These pools of loans are evaluated for 
loss exposure based upon historical loss rates for each of these categories of loans, adjusted for 
qualitative factors.  

These qualitative risk factors include: 

1. Delinquency trends 

2. Volume trends concerning the portfolio and terms of loans 

3. Changes to lending policies and procedures, including underwriting standards and collection, 
charge-off and recovery practices 

4. Experience, ability, and depth of lending management and staff 

5. National, regional, and local economic and business conditions as well as the condition of 
various market segments, including the value of underlying collateral for collateral dependent 
loans 

6. Existence and effect of any concentrations of credit and changes in the level of such 
concentrations 

7. Quality of the Corporation's loan review system, and the degree of oversight by the 
Corporation's Board of Directors 

8. Collateral values 

9. Effect of external factors, such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements 
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The Corporation's ACL is calculated by collectively evaluating segmented pools of loans as well as 
individually evaluating loans. Loans that do not share risk characteristics are evaluated on an 
individual basis. Loans evaluated individually are also not included in the collective evaluation. When 
management determines that foreclosure is probable, or when the borrower is experiencing financial 
difficulty at the reporting date and repayment is expected to be provided substantially through the 
operation or sale of collateral, expected credit losses are based on the fair value of the collateral at 
the reporting date, adjusted for selling costs as appropriate. Loans that experience insignificant 
payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not individually evaluated. Management 
determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, 
taking into consideration the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the 
length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record and the amount of 
the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. 

The estimated fair values of substantially all of the Corporation's individually evaluated loans are 
measured based on the estimated fair value of the loan's collateral. 

For loans secured by real estate, estimated fair values are determined primarily through third-party 
appraisals. When an individually evaluated loan is secured by real estate, a decision is made 
regarding whether an updated certified appraisal of the real estate is necessary. This decision is 
based on various considerations, including the age of the most recent appraisal, the loan-to-value 
ratio based on the original appraisal and the condition of the property. Appraised values are 
discounted, when necessary, to arrive at the estimated selling price of the collateral, which is 
considered to be the estimated fair value. The discounts also include estimated costs to sell the 
property. 

For loans secured by nonreal estate collateral, such as accounts receivable, inventory and 
equipment, estimated fair values are determined based on the borrower's financial statements, 
inventory reports, accounts receivable agings, equipment appraisals, invoices or online pricing 
sources. Indications of value from these sources are generally discounted, as appropriate, based on 
the age of the financial information or the quality of the assets. 

In addition, Federal regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically 
review the Corporation's allowance for credit losses and may require the Corporation to recognize 
adjustments to the allowance based on their judgments about information available to them at the 
time of their examination, which may not be currently available to management at the time of their 
assessment. Based on management's comprehensive analysis of the loan portfolio, management 
believes the current level of the allowance for credit losses is adequate.  

A reserve for unfunded loan commitments is provided for possible credit losses on off-balance sheet 
credit exposures. Off-balance sheet credit exposures primarily include undrawn portions of revolving 
lines of credit and standby letters of credit. The reserve for unfunded loan commitments represents 
management's estimate of losses inherent in its unfunded loan commitments and is recorded in other 
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.  

The Corporation made a policy election to exclude accrued interest receivable from the amortized 
cost basis of loans. Accrued interest receivable on loans is reported as a component of accrued 
interest receivable on the consolidated balance sheets, totaled $321,992 and $295,193 at 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and is excluded from the estimate of credit losses.  
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Restricted Equity Securities 

Restricted equity securities consist of investments in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh 
(FHLB), the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia, and the Atlantic Community Bankers Bank. 
Investments in these entities are restricted and carried at cost.  

Management considers whether these investments are impaired based on the ultimate recoverability 
of the cost basis rather than by recognizing temporary declines in value. Management believes no 
impairment has occurred related to these investments at December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

Bank-Owned Life Insurance 

The Corporation is the owner and beneficiary of bank-owned life insurance policies on certain 
employees. The life insurance investment is carried at the cash surrender value of the underlying 
policies. The increase in the cash surrender value is recognized as a component of noninterest 
income. The policies can be liquidated, if necessary, with tax costs associated. However, the 
Corporation intends to hold these policies and, accordingly, the Corporation has not provided for 
deferred income taxes on the earnings from the increase in cash surrender value. 

Premises and Equipment 

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided 
on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Expenditures for 
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred while costs of major additions and 
improvements are capitalized. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill resulting from business combinations is generally determined as the excess of the fair value 
of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of 
the acquisition date. Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and is not amortized but tested for 
impairment at least annually or more frequently if events and circumstances exists that indicate that a 
goodwill impairment test should be performed. Based on the results of the annual impairment test as 
of October 31, 2024, the Corporation did not recognize any impairment in 2024 and 2023. 

Foreclosed Assets 

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at 
fair value less cost to sell at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to 
foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the 
lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and 
changes in the valuation allowance are included in other operating expenses. 

The Corporation had no foreclosed assets at December 31, 2024 and 2023. Residential real estate 
loans in process of foreclosure were approximately $0 at December 31, 2024 and $140,000 at 
December 31, 2023. 
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The Corporation's ACL is calculated by collectively evaluating segmented pools of loans as well as 
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discounted, when necessary, to arrive at the estimated selling price of the collateral, which is 
considered to be the estimated fair value. The discounts also include estimated costs to sell the 
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equipment, estimated fair values are determined based on the borrower's financial statements, 
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sources. Indications of value from these sources are generally discounted, as appropriate, based on 
the age of the financial information or the quality of the assets. 

In addition, Federal regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically 
review the Corporation's allowance for credit losses and may require the Corporation to recognize 
adjustments to the allowance based on their judgments about information available to them at the 
time of their examination, which may not be currently available to management at the time of their 
assessment. Based on management's comprehensive analysis of the loan portfolio, management 
believes the current level of the allowance for credit losses is adequate.  

A reserve for unfunded loan commitments is provided for possible credit losses on off-balance sheet 
credit exposures. Off-balance sheet credit exposures primarily include undrawn portions of revolving 
lines of credit and standby letters of credit. The reserve for unfunded loan commitments represents 
management's estimate of losses inherent in its unfunded loan commitments and is recorded in other 
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The Corporation made a policy election to exclude accrued interest receivable from the amortized 
cost basis of loans. Accrued interest receivable on loans is reported as a component of accrued 
interest receivable on the consolidated balance sheets, totaled $321,992 and $295,193 at 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and is excluded from the estimate of credit losses.  
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the acquisition date. Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and is not amortized but tested for 
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goodwill impairment test should be performed. Based on the results of the annual impairment test as 
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fair value less cost to sell at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to 
foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the 
lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and 
changes in the valuation allowance are included in other operating expenses. 

The Corporation had no foreclosed assets at December 31, 2024 and 2023. Residential real estate 
loans in process of foreclosure were approximately $0 at December 31, 2024 and $140,000 at 
December 31, 2023. 
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Self-Insurance 

The Corporation is party to an agreement with its health insurance provider to supply coverage to its 
employees under a self-insurance arrangement. Under this arrangement, the Corporation is billed 
monthly by the provider to pay claims. To limit exposure under this arrangement, the Corporation 
obtained stop-loss coverage with a specific annual deductible of $50,000 per covered participant and 
reimbursement of claims are unlimited per covered participant over a lifetime. The stop-loss coverage 
also provides reimbursement up to $1,000,000 if total claims in the aggregate for the Corporation 
exceed approximately $648,000 during a policy year. Expense under this arrangement was $790,391 
in 2024 and $779,218 in 2023 and is included in salaries and employee benefits in the consolidated 
statements of income.  

Benefit Plans 

The Corporation has a profit-sharing plan which covers substantially all employees who have attained 
the age of twenty-one and have completed 1,000 hours of service within one calendar year. The 
amount of the contribution is determined annually by the Corporation's Board of Directors. Expense 
under this plan was $91,204 in 2024 and $94,046 in 2023 and is included in salaries and employee 
benefits in the consolidated statements of income. 

The Corporation has a deferred compensation plan with a director providing supplemental retirement 
benefits. The Corporation has recognized a liability for the present value of this obligation of $13,655 
at December 31, 2024 and $53,521 at December 31, 2023. Expense of $1,184 in 2024 and $2,975 in 
2023 related to this plan is included in directors' fees and compensation expense in the consolidated 
statements of income.  

Income Taxes 

Income tax accounting guidance results in two components of income tax expense: current and 
deferred. Current income tax expense reflects taxes to be paid or refunded for the current period by 
applying the provisions of the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of deductions over 
revenues. The Corporation determines deferred income taxes using the liability (or balance sheet) 
method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax effects of the 
differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Enacted changes in tax rates 
and laws are recognized in the period in which they occur. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a 
valuation allowance if, based on the weight of evidence available, it is more likely than not that some 
portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Corporation recognizes interest and 
penalties on income taxes as a component of income tax expense.  

Advertising Costs 

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and were $68,103 in 2024 and $65,153 in 2023. Amounts 
are included in other operating expenses in the consolidated statements of income.  

Earnings per Share 

Earnings per share is based on the weighted average shares of common stock outstanding. The 
Corporation currently maintains a simple capital structure; therefore, there are no dilutive effects on 
earnings per share.  

Comprehensive Income 

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive (loss) income. Other 
comprehensive (loss) income is comprised of unrealized (losses) gains on available-for-sale debt 
securities which are recognized as a separate component of equity, net of income taxes.  
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Segments 

Segments are components of a company that have discrete financial information available and are 
regularly evaluated by a chief operating decision maker (CODM) to assess performance and decide 
how resources are allocated. Substantially all of the Corporation's operations occur through the Bank 
and involve the delivery of loan and deposit products to customers. Management makes operating 
decisions and assesses performance based on an ongoing review of its banking operation, which 
constitutes the Corporation's only operating segment for financial reporting purposes. The 
Corporation's one reportable segment is determined by its Chief Executive Officer, who is designated 
the CODM, based upon information provided about the Corporation's products and services offered, 
primarily community banking operations. The Corporation’s CODM manages business activities on a 
consolidated basis and uses consolidated net income, as reported on the consolidated statements of 
income, to evaluate financial performance, allocate resources, and monitor budget versus actuals. 
The competitive analysis along with the monitoring of budgeted versus actual results are used in 
assessing performance of the segment and in establishing management's compensation. The 
measure of segment assets is reported on the consolidated balance sheets as total assets at 
December 31, 2024 and 2023.  

Treasury Stock 

Treasury stock is recorded at cost. The subsequent disposition or sale of the treasury stock is 
recorded using the average cost method. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Corporation recognizes revenue from various sources, including loans, investment securities, 
bank-owned life insurance, deposit accounts and sales of assets. 

Interest income on loans is accrued on the unpaid principal balance and recorded daily. Loan 
origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized as an adjustment 
of the related loan yield using the interest method. Other loan fees, including late charges, are 
recognized as they occur.  

Interest income on debt securities, including purchase premiums and discounts, is calculated using 
the interest method over the term of the securities. Dividends on equity securities are recorded when 
declared.  

Earnings on bank-owned life insurance policies represent the increase in the cash surrender value of 
these policies as well as any gains resulting from settlement of the policies. 

Noninterest income includes service charge, overdraft, and other deposit account fees, ATM and 
debit card interchange income, and other miscellaneous fees and income. Revenue is recognized 
when the Corporation's performance obligation is completed which is generally monthly for 
interchange and account service and maintenance fees or when a transaction has been completed, 
such as when an overdraft or an ATM transaction occurs. Other fees and income are generally 
transactional in nature and are recognized as they occur.  

Gains or losses on sales of assets are generally recognized when the asset has been legally 
transferred to the buyer and the Corporation has no continuing involvement with the asset. The 
Corporation does not generally finance the purchase.  

Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events were evaluated through April 7, 2025, the date the consolidated financial 
statements were available to be issued.  
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Earnings on bank-owned life insurance policies represent the increase in the cash surrender value of 
these policies as well as any gains resulting from settlement of the policies. 

Noninterest income includes service charge, overdraft, and other deposit account fees, ATM and 
debit card interchange income, and other miscellaneous fees and income. Revenue is recognized 
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interchange and account service and maintenance fees or when a transaction has been completed, 
such as when an overdraft or an ATM transaction occurs. Other fees and income are generally 
transactional in nature and are recognized as they occur.  

Gains or losses on sales of assets are generally recognized when the asset has been legally 
transferred to the buyer and the Corporation has no continuing involvement with the asset. The 
Corporation does not generally finance the purchase.  

Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events were evaluated through April 7, 2025, the date the consolidated financial 
statements were available to be issued.  
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Future Accounting Standard 

During December 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 2023-09, 
Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. ASU No. 2023-09 enhances 
the transparency and decision usefulness of income tax disclosures. The amendments in this ASU 
require consistent categories and greater disaggregation of information in the rate reconciliation and 
income taxes paid disaggregated by jurisdiction. ASU No.2023-09 is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. The amendments in this ASU should 
be applied on a prospective basis. Retrospective application is permitted. The Corporation does not 
believe that the adoption of ASU No. 2023-09 will have a material effect on its results of operations, 
financial position and cash flows. 

 
2. Securities 

The amortized cost and fair values of securities are as follows at December 31: 

  2024 

  
Amortized 

Cost  
Unrealized 

Gains  
Unrealized 

Losses  
Fair 

Value 
 
Securities available-for-sale:             

U.S. Treasury   $ 5,492,142  $ -  $ (83,314)  $ 5,408,828 
U.S. government agencies   1,000,914   -   (15,171)   985,743 
Obligations of states and 

political subdivisions   24,962,495   766   (1,889,916)   23,073,345 
             

Total  $ 31,455,551  $ 766  $ (1,988,401)  $ 29,467,916 
             
Mortgage-backed securities 

available-for-sale:             
Government sponsored 

enterprises, residential  $ 65,088,310  $ 139,099  $ (7,495,650)  $ 57,731,759 
 
  2023 

  
Amortized 

Cost  
Unrealized 

Gains  
Unrealized 

Losses  
Fair 

Value 
 
Securities available-for-sale:             

U.S. Treasury   $ 2,974,120  $ -  $ (30,370)  $ 2,943,750 
U.S. government agencies   12,008,107   -   (128,475)   11,879,632 
Obligations of states and 

political subdivisions   27,199,459   6,220   (1,944,662)   25,261,017 
             

Total  $ 42,181,686  $ 6,220  $ (2,103,507)  $ 40,084,399 
             
Mortgage-backed securities 

available-for-sale:             
Government sponsored 

enterprises, residential  $ 59,649,035  $ 266,551  $ (7,109,007)  $ 52,806,579 
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The amortized cost and fair value of securities at December 31, 2024 by contractual maturity are shown 
below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to 
call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

  Securities Available-for-Sale 

  
Amortized 

Cost  
Fair 

Value 
 

Due within 1 year  $ 3,293,397  $ 3,267,341 
Due after 1 but within 5 years   17,445,433   16,713,716 
Due after 5 but within 10 years   8,008,531   7,212,926 
Due after 10 years   2,708,190   2,273,933 
       

  $ 31,455,551  $ 29,467,916 
 

  
Mortgage-Backed Securities 

Available-for-Sale 

  
Amortized 

Cost  
Fair 

Value 
 

Due within 1 year  $ -  $ - 
Due after 1 but within 5 years   328,529   318,182 
Due after 5 but within 10 years   3,337,632   3,089,989 
Due after 10 years   61,422,149   54,323,588 
       

  $ 65,088,310  $ 57,731,759 
 

Securities with a carrying amount of $61,699,214 at December 31, 2024 and $64,982,257 at 
December 31, 2023, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes required or permitted 
by law. 

In 2024 and 2023, there were no sales of securities available-for-sale or mortgage-backed securities 
available-for-sale.  

The following tables present gross unrealized losses and fair value of investments aggregated by 
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position 
at December 31: 

  2024 
  Less Than 12 Months  12 Months or More  Total 

 
 

Fair Value  
Unrealized 

Losses  Fair Value  
Unrealized 

Losses  Fair Value  
Unrealized 

Losses 
 
Securities available-for-

sale: 
 

                 
U.S. Treasury  $ 3,916,562  $ (80,269)  $ 1,492,266  $ (3,045)  $ 5,408,828  $ (83,314) 
U.S. government 

agencies 
 

 985,743   (15,171)   -   -   985,743   (15,171) 
Obligations of states 

and political 
subdivisions 

 

 2,714,320   (111,792)   19,251,520   (1,778,124)   21,965,840   (1,889,916) 
                   

   7,616,625   (207,232)   20,743,786   (1,781,169)   28,360,411   (1,988,401) 
                   
Mortgage-backed-

securities available-for-
sale: 

 

                 
Government 

sponsored 
enterprises, 
residential 

 

 14,221,171   (230,786)   35,683,468   (7,264,864)   49,904,639   (7,495,650) 
                   

Total  $ 21,837,796  $ (438,018)  $ 56,427,254  $ (9,046,033)  $ 78,265,050  $ (9,484,051) 
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The amortized cost and fair value of securities at December 31, 2024 by contractual maturity are shown 
below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to 
call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

  Securities Available-for-Sale 

  
Amortized 

Cost  
Fair 

Value 
 

Due within 1 year  $ 3,293,397  $ 3,267,341 
Due after 1 but within 5 years   17,445,433   16,713,716 
Due after 5 but within 10 years   8,008,531   7,212,926 
Due after 10 years   2,708,190   2,273,933 
       

  $ 31,455,551  $ 29,467,916 
 

  
Mortgage-Backed Securities 

Available-for-Sale 

  
Amortized 

Cost  
Fair 

Value 
 

Due within 1 year  $ -  $ - 
Due after 1 but within 5 years   328,529   318,182 
Due after 5 but within 10 years   3,337,632   3,089,989 
Due after 10 years   61,422,149   54,323,588 
       

  $ 65,088,310  $ 57,731,759 
 

Securities with a carrying amount of $61,699,214 at December 31, 2024 and $64,982,257 at 
December 31, 2023, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes required or permitted 
by law. 

In 2024 and 2023, there were no sales of securities available-for-sale or mortgage-backed securities 
available-for-sale.  

The following tables present gross unrealized losses and fair value of investments aggregated by 
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position 
at December 31: 

  2024 
  Less Than 12 Months  12 Months or More  Total 

 
 

Fair Value  
Unrealized 

Losses  Fair Value  
Unrealized 

Losses  Fair Value  
Unrealized 

Losses 
 
Securities available-for-

sale: 
 

                 
U.S. Treasury  $ 3,916,562  $ (80,269)  $ 1,492,266  $ (3,045)  $ 5,408,828  $ (83,314) 
U.S. government 

agencies 
 

 985,743   (15,171)   -   -   985,743   (15,171) 
Obligations of states 

and political 
subdivisions 

 

 2,714,320   (111,792)   19,251,520   (1,778,124)   21,965,840   (1,889,916) 
                   

   7,616,625   (207,232)   20,743,786   (1,781,169)   28,360,411   (1,988,401) 
                   
Mortgage-backed-

securities available-for-
sale: 

 

                 
Government 

sponsored 
enterprises, 
residential 

 

 14,221,171   (230,786)   35,683,468   (7,264,864)   49,904,639   (7,495,650) 
                   

Total  $ 21,837,796  $ (438,018)  $ 56,427,254  $ (9,046,033)  $ 78,265,050  $ (9,484,051) 
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  2023 
  Less Than 12 Months  12 Months or More  Total 

 
 

Fair Value  
Unrealized 

Losses  Fair Value  
Unrealized 

Losses  Fair Value  
Unrealized 

Losses 
 
Securities available-for-

sale: 
 

                 
U.S. Treasury  $ -  $ -  $ 2,943,750  $ (30,370)  $ 2,943,750  $ (30,370) 
U.S. government 

agencies 
 

 5,914,079   (96,242)   5,965,553   (32,233)   11,879,632   (128,475) 
Obligations of states 

and political 
subdivisions 

 

 6,102,186   (691,009)   16,374,361   (1,253,653)   22,476,547   (1,944,662) 
                   

   12,016,265   (787,251)   25,283,664   (1,316,256)   37,299,929   (2,103,507) 
                   
Mortgage-backed-

securities available-for-
sale: 

 

                 
Government 

sponsored 
enterprises, 
residential 

 

 40,420,829   (7,109,007)   -   -   40,420,829   (7,109,007) 
                   

Total  $ 52,437,094  $ (7,896,258)  $ 25,283,664  $ (1,316,256)  $ 77,720,758  $ (9,212,514) 

 
At December 31, 2024, 107 securities totaling $78.3 million were in an unrealized loss position. The 
individual losses ranged from $234 to $1.2 million and the total gross unrealized loss was $9.5 million at 
December 31, 2024. The primary driver behind the market value changes of these securities relate to 
various changes in interest rates. At December 31, 2024, there were 91 securities totaling $9.1 million in 
an unrealized loss position more than 12 months. The primary reason these securities have unrealized 
losses relates to their original purchase date and the interest rate/spreads that was in effect at that date. 
There has been no material negative change in credit issues in the portfolio. All securities have the 
explicit or implicit guarantee of the U. S. Government or relate to obligations of states and political 
subdivisions. The Corporation has performed an analysis of these securities as summarized in the 
"Allowance for Credit Losses on Available for Sale Securities" accounting policy. Management believes 
that unrealized losses are temporary in nature and are a result of the current interest rate environment 
and not a reflection of credit quality. There was no allowance for credit loss on securities recorded as of 
December 31, 2024 or 2023. 

 
3. Loans, Net 

The Corporation's loan portfolio is segmented to enable management to monitor risk and performance. 
For 2024 and 2023, the loans receivable portfolio was aligned into the following segments: Real Estate 
(including construction, commercial and residential), commercial, other consumer and municipal loans. 

  

JTNB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2024 and 2023 
 

18 

The composition of the Corporation's loan portfolio at December 31, 2024 is as follows: 

Construction real estate  $ 1,163,062 
Commercial real estate   52,269,388 
Residential real estate   53,044,920 
Commercial   2,640,193 
Other consumer   2,458,434 
Municipal loans   16,090,939 
    

Total loans   127,666,936 
    
Allowance for credit losses   (1,347,055) 

    
Net loans  $ 126,319,881 

 
The composition of the Corporation's loan portfolio at December 31, 2023 is as follows: 

Commercial and industrial  $ 1,422,781 
Commercial real estate   44,763,550 
Residential mortgage   51,048,550 
Home equity   3,283,567 
Municipal   19,283,274 
Consumer   2,110,632 
    

Total loans   121,912,354 
    
Allowance for credit losses   (1,350,597) 

    
Net loans  $ 120,561,757 

 
The following tables present the activity in the allowance for credit losses by loan segment, segregated 
into the amount required for loans individually evaluated for impairment and the amount required for loans 
collectively evaluated for potential losses as of December 31:  

  2024 
  Allowance for Credit Losses 

  
Beginning 
Balance   Charge-offs  Recoveries  

Provisions 
(Credits)  

Ending 
Balance  

Ending 
Balance: 

Individually 
Evaluated 

for 
Impairment  

Ending 
Balance: 

Collectively 
Evaluated 

for 
Impairment 

 
Construction real 

estate 
 

$ 23,284  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ 23,284  $ -  $ 23,284 
Commercial real estate   605,924   -   -   -   605,924   -   605,924 
Residential real estate   595,634   -   -   -   595,634   -   595,634 
Commercial   48,819   -   -   -   48,819   -   48,819 
Other consumer   51,920   (4,178)   636   -   48,378   -   48,378 
Municipal loans   25,016   -   -   -   25,016   -   25,016 
                      

Total  $ 1,350,597  $ (4,178)  $ 636  $ -  $ 1,347,055  $ -  $ 1,347,055 
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  2023 
  Less Than 12 Months  12 Months or More  Total 

 
 

Fair Value  
Unrealized 

Losses  Fair Value  
Unrealized 

Losses  Fair Value  
Unrealized 

Losses 
 
Securities available-for-

sale: 
 

                 
U.S. Treasury  $ -  $ -  $ 2,943,750  $ (30,370)  $ 2,943,750  $ (30,370) 
U.S. government 

agencies 
 

 5,914,079   (96,242)   5,965,553   (32,233)   11,879,632   (128,475) 
Obligations of states 

and political 
subdivisions 

 

 6,102,186   (691,009)   16,374,361   (1,253,653)   22,476,547   (1,944,662) 
                   

   12,016,265   (787,251)   25,283,664   (1,316,256)   37,299,929   (2,103,507) 
                   
Mortgage-backed-

securities available-for-
sale: 

 

                 
Government 

sponsored 
enterprises, 
residential 

 

 40,420,829   (7,109,007)   -   -   40,420,829   (7,109,007) 
                   

Total  $ 52,437,094  $ (7,896,258)  $ 25,283,664  $ (1,316,256)  $ 77,720,758  $ (9,212,514) 

 
At December 31, 2024, 107 securities totaling $78.3 million were in an unrealized loss position. The 
individual losses ranged from $234 to $1.2 million and the total gross unrealized loss was $9.5 million at 
December 31, 2024. The primary driver behind the market value changes of these securities relate to 
various changes in interest rates. At December 31, 2024, there were 91 securities totaling $9.1 million in 
an unrealized loss position more than 12 months. The primary reason these securities have unrealized 
losses relates to their original purchase date and the interest rate/spreads that was in effect at that date. 
There has been no material negative change in credit issues in the portfolio. All securities have the 
explicit or implicit guarantee of the U. S. Government or relate to obligations of states and political 
subdivisions. The Corporation has performed an analysis of these securities as summarized in the 
"Allowance for Credit Losses on Available for Sale Securities" accounting policy. Management believes 
that unrealized losses are temporary in nature and are a result of the current interest rate environment 
and not a reflection of credit quality. There was no allowance for credit loss on securities recorded as of 
December 31, 2024 or 2023. 

 
3. Loans, Net 

The Corporation's loan portfolio is segmented to enable management to monitor risk and performance. 
For 2024 and 2023, the loans receivable portfolio was aligned into the following segments: Real Estate 
(including construction, commercial and residential), commercial, other consumer and municipal loans. 
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The composition of the Corporation's loan portfolio at December 31, 2024 is as follows: 

Construction real estate  $ 1,163,062 
Commercial real estate   52,269,388 
Residential real estate   53,044,920 
Commercial   2,640,193 
Other consumer   2,458,434 
Municipal loans   16,090,939 
    

Total loans   127,666,936 
    
Allowance for credit losses   (1,347,055) 

    
Net loans  $ 126,319,881 

 
The composition of the Corporation's loan portfolio at December 31, 2023 is as follows: 

Commercial and industrial  $ 1,422,781 
Commercial real estate   44,763,550 
Residential mortgage   51,048,550 
Home equity   3,283,567 
Municipal   19,283,274 
Consumer   2,110,632 
    

Total loans   121,912,354 
    
Allowance for credit losses   (1,350,597) 

    
Net loans  $ 120,561,757 

 
The following tables present the activity in the allowance for credit losses by loan segment, segregated 
into the amount required for loans individually evaluated for impairment and the amount required for loans 
collectively evaluated for potential losses as of December 31:  

  2024 
  Allowance for Credit Losses 

  
Beginning 
Balance   Charge-offs  Recoveries  

Provisions 
(Credits)  

Ending 
Balance  

Ending 
Balance: 

Individually 
Evaluated 

for 
Impairment  

Ending 
Balance: 

Collectively 
Evaluated 

for 
Impairment 

 
Construction real 

estate 
 

$ 23,284  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ 23,284  $ -  $ 23,284 
Commercial real estate   605,924   -   -   -   605,924   -   605,924 
Residential real estate   595,634   -   -   -   595,634   -   595,634 
Commercial   48,819   -   -   -   48,819   -   48,819 
Other consumer   51,920   (4,178)   636   -   48,378   -   48,378 
Municipal loans   25,016   -   -   -   25,016   -   25,016 
                      

Total  $ 1,350,597  $ (4,178)  $ 636  $ -  $ 1,347,055  $ -  $ 1,347,055 
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  2023 
  Allowance for Credit Losses 

  

Beginning 
Balance 
Prior to 

Adoption of 
ASC 326  Charge-offs  Recoveries  

Provisions 
(Credits)  

Ending 
Balance  

Ending 
Balance: 

Individually 
Evaluated 

for 
Impairment  

Ending 
Balance: 

Collectively 
Evaluated 

for 
Impairment 

 
Construction real 

estate 
 

$ 41,033  $ -  $ -  $ (17,749)  $ 23,284  $ -  $ 23,284 
Commercial real estate   653,351   -   -   (47,427)   605,924   -   605,924 
Residential real estate   536,168   -   89,274   (29,808)   595,634   -   595,634 
Commercial   24,339   -   -   24,480   48,819   -   48,819 
Other consumer   18,772   (5,348)   848   37,648   51,920   -   51,920 
Municipal loans   52,160   -   -   (27,144)   25,016   -   25,016 
                      

Total  $ 1,325,823  $ (5,348)  $ 90,122  $ (60,000)  $ 1,350,597  $ -  $ 1,350,597 

 
The following table presents the activity for a reserve for unfunded loan commitments which is provided 
for possible credit losses on off-balance sheet credit exposures. Off-balance sheet credit exposures 
primarily include undrawn portions of revolving lines of credit, commitments to originate loans and 
standby letters of credit. The reserve for unfunded lending commitments represents management's 
estimate of losses inherent in its unfunded loan commitments and is recorded in other liabilities on the 
consolidated balance sheets.  

  

Beginning 
Balance at 

December 31, 
2023  Provisions  

Ending Balance 
at December 31, 

2024 
 

Unfunded commitment reserve  $ 10,300  $ -  $ 10,300 
 

  

Beginning 
Balance at 

December 31, 
2022  Provisions  

Ending Balance 
at December 31, 

2023 
 

Unfunded commitment reserve  $ -  $ 10,300  $ 10,300 
 

The following tables summarize information in regard to loans that were individually evaluated for 
impairment as December 31: 

  2024 
  Loans Receivable 

  
Ending 
Balance  

Ending Balance 
Individually 

Evaluated for 
Impairment  

Ending Balance 
Collectively 

Evaluated for 
Impairment 

 

Construction real estate  $ 1,163,062  $ -  $ 1,163,062 
Commercial real estate   52,269,388   753,057   51,516,331 
Residential real estate   53,044,920   3,461   53,041,459 
Commercial   2,640,193   14,764   2,625,429 
Other consumer   2,458,434   5,285   2,453,149 
Municipal loans   16,090,939   -   16,090,939 

          

Total  $ 127,666,936  $ 776,567  $ 126,890,369 
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  2023 
  Loans Receivable 

  
Ending 
Balance  

Ending Balance 
Individually 

Evaluated for 
Impairment  

Ending Balance 
Collectively 

Evaluated for 
Impairment 

 

Construction real estate  $ 1,422,781  $ -  $ 1,422,781 
Commercial real estate   44,763,550   58,731   44,704,819 
Residential real estate   51,048,550   -   51,048,550 
Commercial   3,283,567   -   3,283,567 
Other consumer   2,110,632   -   2,110,632 
Municipal loans   19,283,274   -   19,283,274 
          

Total  $ 121,912,354  $ 58,731  $ 121,853,623 
 

The following tables present nonaccrual loans by classes of the loan portfolio as of December 31: 

  2024 

  

Nonaccrual 
Loans With  

No Allowance  

Nonaccrual 
Loans With  

an Allowance  

Total 
Nonaccrual 

Loans 
 

Commercial  $ 14,764  $ -  $ 14,764 
          

Total  $ 14,764  $ -  $ 14,764 
 
  2023 

  

Nonaccrual 
Loans With  

No Allowance  

Nonaccrual 
Loans With  

an Allowance  

Total 
Nonaccrual 

Loans 
 

Commercial real estate  $ 58,731  $ -  $ 58,731 
          

Total  $ 58,731  $ -  $ 58,731 
 

The following tables detail the amortized cost of collateral dependent loans by class of loans as of 
December 31:  

  2024  2023 
 

Commercial real estate  $ 753,057  $ 58,731 
Commercial   14,764   - 
Residential real estate   3,461   - 
Other consumer   5,285   - 

       
Total  $ 776,567  $ 58,731 
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  2023 
  Allowance for Credit Losses 

  

Beginning 
Balance 
Prior to 

Adoption of 
ASC 326  Charge-offs  Recoveries  

Provisions 
(Credits)  

Ending 
Balance  

Ending 
Balance: 

Individually 
Evaluated 

for 
Impairment  

Ending 
Balance: 

Collectively 
Evaluated 

for 
Impairment 

 
Construction real 

estate 
 

$ 41,033  $ -  $ -  $ (17,749)  $ 23,284  $ -  $ 23,284 
Commercial real estate   653,351   -   -   (47,427)   605,924   -   605,924 
Residential real estate   536,168   -   89,274   (29,808)   595,634   -   595,634 
Commercial   24,339   -   -   24,480   48,819   -   48,819 
Other consumer   18,772   (5,348)   848   37,648   51,920   -   51,920 
Municipal loans   52,160   -   -   (27,144)   25,016   -   25,016 
                      

Total  $ 1,325,823  $ (5,348)  $ 90,122  $ (60,000)  $ 1,350,597  $ -  $ 1,350,597 

 
The following table presents the activity for a reserve for unfunded loan commitments which is provided 
for possible credit losses on off-balance sheet credit exposures. Off-balance sheet credit exposures 
primarily include undrawn portions of revolving lines of credit, commitments to originate loans and 
standby letters of credit. The reserve for unfunded lending commitments represents management's 
estimate of losses inherent in its unfunded loan commitments and is recorded in other liabilities on the 
consolidated balance sheets.  

  

Beginning 
Balance at 

December 31, 
2023  Provisions  

Ending Balance 
at December 31, 

2024 
 

Unfunded commitment reserve  $ 10,300  $ -  $ 10,300 
 

  

Beginning 
Balance at 

December 31, 
2022  Provisions  

Ending Balance 
at December 31, 

2023 
 

Unfunded commitment reserve  $ -  $ 10,300  $ 10,300 
 

The following tables summarize information in regard to loans that were individually evaluated for 
impairment as December 31: 

  2024 
  Loans Receivable 

  
Ending 
Balance  

Ending Balance 
Individually 

Evaluated for 
Impairment  

Ending Balance 
Collectively 

Evaluated for 
Impairment 

 

Construction real estate  $ 1,163,062  $ -  $ 1,163,062 
Commercial real estate   52,269,388   753,057   51,516,331 
Residential real estate   53,044,920   3,461   53,041,459 
Commercial   2,640,193   14,764   2,625,429 
Other consumer   2,458,434   5,285   2,453,149 
Municipal loans   16,090,939   -   16,090,939 

          

Total  $ 127,666,936  $ 776,567  $ 126,890,369 
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  2023 
  Loans Receivable 

  
Ending 
Balance  

Ending Balance 
Individually 

Evaluated for 
Impairment  

Ending Balance 
Collectively 

Evaluated for 
Impairment 

 

Construction real estate  $ 1,422,781  $ -  $ 1,422,781 
Commercial real estate   44,763,550   58,731   44,704,819 
Residential real estate   51,048,550   -   51,048,550 
Commercial   3,283,567   -   3,283,567 
Other consumer   2,110,632   -   2,110,632 
Municipal loans   19,283,274   -   19,283,274 
          

Total  $ 121,912,354  $ 58,731  $ 121,853,623 
 

The following tables present nonaccrual loans by classes of the loan portfolio as of December 31: 

  2024 

  

Nonaccrual 
Loans With  

No Allowance  

Nonaccrual 
Loans With  

an Allowance  

Total 
Nonaccrual 

Loans 
 

Commercial  $ 14,764  $ -  $ 14,764 
          

Total  $ 14,764  $ -  $ 14,764 
 
  2023 

  

Nonaccrual 
Loans With  

No Allowance  

Nonaccrual 
Loans With  

an Allowance  

Total 
Nonaccrual 

Loans 
 

Commercial real estate  $ 58,731  $ -  $ 58,731 
          

Total  $ 58,731  $ -  $ 58,731 
 

The following tables detail the amortized cost of collateral dependent loans by class of loans as of 
December 31:  

  2024  2023 
 

Commercial real estate  $ 753,057  $ 58,731 
Commercial   14,764   - 
Residential real estate   3,461   - 
Other consumer   5,285   - 

       
Total  $ 776,567  $ 58,731 
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The Corporation categorizes loans into risk rating categories. The borrower's overall financial condition, 
repayment sources, guarantors and value of collateral, if appropriate, are evaluated annually for 
commercial loans or when credit deficiencies arise, such as delinquent loan payments, for commercial 
and consumer loans. Credit quality risk ratings include regulatory classifications of special mention, 
substandard, doubtful, and loss. Loans classified as special mention have potential weaknesses that 
deserve management's close attention. If uncorrected, the potential weaknesses may result in 
deterioration of the repayment prospects. Loans classified as substandard have a well-defined weakness 
or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They include loans that are inadequately 
protected by the current sound net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if 
any. Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in loans classified as substandard 
with the added characteristic that collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of current conditions and 
facts, is highly improbable. Loans classified as a loss are considered uncollectible and are charged to the 
allowance for credit losses. Loans not criticized or classified are rated pass. 

The following tables present the classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the aggregate pass rating 
and the classified ratings of special mention and substandard within the Corporation's internal risk rating 
system as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 by year of origination: 

  2024  2023  2022  2021  Prior  Revolving  Total 
 
As of December 31, 

2024               
               
Construction real 

estate: 
 

                    
Pass  $ 483,127  $ 84,624  $ 427,149  $ 139,427  $ 28,735  $ -  $ 1,163,062 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

                      
Total   483,127   84,624   427,149   139,427   28,735   -   1,163,062 

                      
2024 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                      
Commercial real 

estate: 
 

                    
Pass    10,650,302   7,695,642   7,213,433   5,898,000   17,805,804   2,253,150   51,516,331 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   753,057   -   -   -   753,057 

                      
Total   10,650,302   7,695,642   7,966,490   5,898,000   17,805,804   2,253,150   52,269,388 

                      
2024 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                      
Residential real estate:                      

Pass    5,974,461   6,713,408   7,009,790   7,355,505   24,654,362   1,333,933   53,041,459 
Special mention   -   -   -      -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   -   3,461   -   3,461 

                      
Total   5,974,461   6,713,408   7,009,790   7,355,505   24,657,823   1,333,933   53,044,920 

                      
2024 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                      
Commercial:                      

Pass    20,616   -   254,800   57,716   1,799,977   492,320   2,625,429 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   -   -   14,764   14,764 

                      
Total   20,616   -   254,800   57,716   1,799,977   507,084   2,640,193 
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  2024  2023  2022  2021  Prior  Revolving  Total 
 
2024 gross write offs  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
                      
Other consumer:                      

Pass   950,270   705,347   293,247   256,330   226,388   21,567   2,453,149 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   5,285   -   -   -   5,285 

                      
Total   950,270   705,347   298,532   256,330   226,388   21,567   2,458,434 

                      
2024 gross write offs   4,178   -   -   -   -   -   4,178 
                      
Municipal loans:                      

Pass    -   1,735,356   -   8,726,668   5,628,915   -   16,090,939 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

                      
Total   -   1,735,356   -   8,726,668   5,628,915   -   16,090,939 

                      
2024 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                      
Total loans:                      

Pass   18,078,776   16,934,377   15,198,419   22,433,646   50,144,181   4,100,970   126,890,369 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   758,342   -   3,461   14,764   776,567 

                      
Grand total  $ 18,078,776  $ 16,934,377  $ 15,956,761  $ 22,433,646  $ 50,147,642  $ 4,115,734  $ 127,666,936 

                      
2024 gross write offs  $ 4,178  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ 4,178 

 
  2023  2022  2021  Prior  Revolving  Total 
As of December 31, 2023                   
                   
Construction real estate:                   

Pass  $ 773,694  $ 447,262  $ 165,246  $ 36,579  $ -  $ 1,422,781 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   -   -   - 

                   
Total   773,694   447,262   165,246   36,579   -   1,422,781 

                   
2023 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                   
Commercial real estate:                   

Pass   7,331.879   8,817,592   6,268,031   20,373,650   1,913,667   44,704,819 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   58,731   -   58,731 

                   
Total   7,331,879   8,817,592   6,268,031   20,432,381   1,913,667   44,763,550 

                   
2023 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                   
Residential real estate:                   

Pass   6,014,060   8,355,965   7,980,470   28,338,391   359,664   51,048,550 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   - 
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The Corporation categorizes loans into risk rating categories. The borrower's overall financial condition, 
repayment sources, guarantors and value of collateral, if appropriate, are evaluated annually for 
commercial loans or when credit deficiencies arise, such as delinquent loan payments, for commercial 
and consumer loans. Credit quality risk ratings include regulatory classifications of special mention, 
substandard, doubtful, and loss. Loans classified as special mention have potential weaknesses that 
deserve management's close attention. If uncorrected, the potential weaknesses may result in 
deterioration of the repayment prospects. Loans classified as substandard have a well-defined weakness 
or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They include loans that are inadequately 
protected by the current sound net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if 
any. Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in loans classified as substandard 
with the added characteristic that collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of current conditions and 
facts, is highly improbable. Loans classified as a loss are considered uncollectible and are charged to the 
allowance for credit losses. Loans not criticized or classified are rated pass. 

The following tables present the classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the aggregate pass rating 
and the classified ratings of special mention and substandard within the Corporation's internal risk rating 
system as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 by year of origination: 

  2024  2023  2022  2021  Prior  Revolving  Total 
 
As of December 31, 

2024               
               
Construction real 

estate: 
 

                    
Pass  $ 483,127  $ 84,624  $ 427,149  $ 139,427  $ 28,735  $ -  $ 1,163,062 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

                      
Total   483,127   84,624   427,149   139,427   28,735   -   1,163,062 

                      
2024 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                      
Commercial real 

estate: 
 

                    
Pass    10,650,302   7,695,642   7,213,433   5,898,000   17,805,804   2,253,150   51,516,331 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   753,057   -   -   -   753,057 

                      
Total   10,650,302   7,695,642   7,966,490   5,898,000   17,805,804   2,253,150   52,269,388 

                      
2024 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                      
Residential real estate:                      

Pass    5,974,461   6,713,408   7,009,790   7,355,505   24,654,362   1,333,933   53,041,459 
Special mention   -   -   -      -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   -   3,461   -   3,461 

                      
Total   5,974,461   6,713,408   7,009,790   7,355,505   24,657,823   1,333,933   53,044,920 

                      
2024 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                      
Commercial:                      

Pass    20,616   -   254,800   57,716   1,799,977   492,320   2,625,429 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   -   -   14,764   14,764 

                      
Total   20,616   -   254,800   57,716   1,799,977   507,084   2,640,193 
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  2024  2023  2022  2021  Prior  Revolving  Total 
 
2024 gross write offs  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
                      
Other consumer:                      

Pass   950,270   705,347   293,247   256,330   226,388   21,567   2,453,149 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   5,285   -   -   -   5,285 

                      
Total   950,270   705,347   298,532   256,330   226,388   21,567   2,458,434 

                      
2024 gross write offs   4,178   -   -   -   -   -   4,178 
                      
Municipal loans:                      

Pass    -   1,735,356   -   8,726,668   5,628,915   -   16,090,939 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 

                      
Total   -   1,735,356   -   8,726,668   5,628,915   -   16,090,939 

                      
2024 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                      
Total loans:                      

Pass   18,078,776   16,934,377   15,198,419   22,433,646   50,144,181   4,100,970   126,890,369 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   758,342   -   3,461   14,764   776,567 

                      
Grand total  $ 18,078,776  $ 16,934,377  $ 15,956,761  $ 22,433,646  $ 50,147,642  $ 4,115,734  $ 127,666,936 

                      
2024 gross write offs  $ 4,178  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ 4,178 

 
  2023  2022  2021  Prior  Revolving  Total 
As of December 31, 2023                   
                   
Construction real estate:                   

Pass  $ 773,694  $ 447,262  $ 165,246  $ 36,579  $ -  $ 1,422,781 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   -   -   - 

                   
Total   773,694   447,262   165,246   36,579   -   1,422,781 

                   
2023 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                   
Commercial real estate:                   

Pass   7,331.879   8,817,592   6,268,031   20,373,650   1,913,667   44,704,819 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   58,731   -   58,731 

                   
Total   7,331,879   8,817,592   6,268,031   20,432,381   1,913,667   44,763,550 

                   
2023 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                   
Residential real estate:                   

Pass   6,014,060   8,355,965   7,980,470   28,338,391   359,664   51,048,550 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   - 
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  2023  2022  2021  Prior  Revolving  Total 
As of December 31, 2023                   
                   

Substandard  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
                   

Total   6,014,060   8,355,965   7,980,470   28,338,391   359,664   51,048,550 
                   

2023 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                   
Commercial:                   

Pass   -   361,325   402,551   2,041,893   477,798   3,283,567 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   -   -   - 

                   
Total   -   361,325   402,551   2,041,893   477,798   3,283,567 

                   
2023 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                   
Other consumer:                   

Pass   921,238   440,895   384,574   363,925   -   2,110,632 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   -   -   - 

                   
Total   921,238   440,895   384,574   363,925   -   2,110,632 

                   
2023 gross write offs   -   5,348   -   -   -   5,348 
                   
Municipal loans:                   

Pass   222,886   2,348,000   10,224,355   6,488,033   -   19,283,274 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   -   -   - 

                   
Total   222,886   2,348,000   10,224,355   6,488,033   -   19,283,274 

                   
2023 gross write offs   -   -   -   -   -   - 
                   
Total loans:                   

Pass   15,263,757   20,771,039   25,425,227   57,642,269   2,751,129   121,853,421 
Special mention   -   -   -   -   -   - 
Substandard   -   -   -   58,933   -   58,933 

                   
Grand total  $ 15,263,757  $ 20,771,039  $ 25,425,227  $ 57,701,202  $ 2,751,129  $ 121,912,354 

                   
2023 gross write-offs  $ -  $ 5,348  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ 5,348 
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The performance and credit quality of the loan portfolio is also monitored by analyzing the age of the 
loans receivable as determined by the length of time a recorded payment is past due. The following 
tables present past due status of loans as of December 31: 

  2024 

  
30-59 Days 
Past Due  

60-89 Days 
Past Due  

Greater 
than 90 
Days  

Total Past 
Due  Current  

Total Loans 
Receivable  

Loans 
Receivable 

> 90 Days and 
Accruing 

 
Construction real estate  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ 1,163,062  $ 1,163,062  $ - 
Commercial real estate   233,443   -   -   233,443   52,035,945   52,269,388   - 
Residential real estate   48,514   51,723   78,056   178,293   52,866,627   53,044,920   77,817 
Commercial   -   14,764   -   14,764   2,625,429   2,640,193   - 
Other consumer   4,526   -   5,285   9,811   2,448,623   2,458,434   5,285 
Municipal loans   744,565   99,842   -   844,407   15,246,532   16,090,939   - 
                      

Total  $ 1,031,048  $ 166,329  $ 83,341  $ 1,280,718  $ 126,386,218  $ 127,666,936  $ 83,102 

 
  2023 

  
30-59 Days 
Past Due  

60-89 Days 
Past Due  

Greater 
than 90 
Days  

Total Past 
Due  Current  

Total Loans 
Receivable  

Loans 
Receivable 

> 90 Days and 
Accruing 

 
Construction real estate  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ 1,422,781  $ 1,422,781  $ - 
Commercial real estate   -   32,716   58,731   91,447   44,672,103   44,763,550   - 
Residential real estate   91,490   -   81,453   172,943   50,875,607   51,048,550   81,453 
Commercial   554,015   -   -   554,015   2,729,552   3,283,567   - 
Other consumer   -   839   -   839   2,109,793   2,110,632   - 
Municipal loans   -   -   -   -   19,283,274   19,283,274   - 
                      

Total  $ 645,505  $ 33,555  $ 140,184  $ 819,244  $ 121,093,110  $ 121,912,354  $ 81,453 

 
In some cases, the Corporation may agree to modify or restructure the contractual terms of loans to 
borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. The Corporation may modify loans through rate reductions, 
extensions of maturity, interest only payments or payment modifications to better match the timing of cash 
flows due under the modified terms with the cash flows from the borrowers' operations. Loan 
modifications are intended to minimize the economic loss and to avoid foreclosure or repossession of the 
collateral. Loans so modified remain collectively evaluated for determination of expected credit losses, 
unless, during the process of evaluation, it is determined that the loan should be placed on nonaccrual 
status until the Corporation determines that future collection of principal and interest is reasonably 
assured or the loan is otherwise deemed to be collateral dependent. Any modifications of loans to 
borrowers experiencing financial difficulty that are classified as nonaccrual or are otherwise designated as 
collateral dependent are individually evaluated for determination of expected credit losses. The 
Corporation did not modify any loans to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties in 2024 or 2023.  

 
4. Premises and Equipment 

The following summarizes premises and equipment at December 31: 

  2024  2023 
 

Land, buildings, and improvements  $ 4,285,304  $ 4,269,428 
Furniture and fixtures   3,558,795   3,500,755 
       

Total cost   7,844,099   7,770,183 
       
Less accumulated depreciation   6,494,767   6,373,075 
       

Net   $ 1,349,332  $ 1,397,108 
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The performance and credit quality of the loan portfolio is also monitored by analyzing the age of the 
loans receivable as determined by the length of time a recorded payment is past due. The following 
tables present past due status of loans as of December 31: 

  2024 

  
30-59 Days 
Past Due  

60-89 Days 
Past Due  

Greater 
than 90 
Days  

Total Past 
Due  Current  

Total Loans 
Receivable  

Loans 
Receivable 

> 90 Days and 
Accruing 

 
Construction real estate  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ 1,163,062  $ 1,163,062  $ - 
Commercial real estate   233,443   -   -   233,443   52,035,945   52,269,388   - 
Residential real estate   48,514   51,723   78,056   178,293   52,866,627   53,044,920   77,817 
Commercial   -   14,764   -   14,764   2,625,429   2,640,193   - 
Other consumer   4,526   -   5,285   9,811   2,448,623   2,458,434   5,285 
Municipal loans   744,565   99,842   -   844,407   15,246,532   16,090,939   - 
                      

Total  $ 1,031,048  $ 166,329  $ 83,341  $ 1,280,718  $ 126,386,218  $ 127,666,936  $ 83,102 

 
  2023 

  
30-59 Days 
Past Due  

60-89 Days 
Past Due  

Greater 
than 90 
Days  

Total Past 
Due  Current  

Total Loans 
Receivable  

Loans 
Receivable 

> 90 Days and 
Accruing 

 
Construction real estate  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ 1,422,781  $ 1,422,781  $ - 
Commercial real estate   -   32,716   58,731   91,447   44,672,103   44,763,550   - 
Residential real estate   91,490   -   81,453   172,943   50,875,607   51,048,550   81,453 
Commercial   554,015   -   -   554,015   2,729,552   3,283,567   - 
Other consumer   -   839   -   839   2,109,793   2,110,632   - 
Municipal loans   -   -   -   -   19,283,274   19,283,274   - 
                      

Total  $ 645,505  $ 33,555  $ 140,184  $ 819,244  $ 121,093,110  $ 121,912,354  $ 81,453 

 
In some cases, the Corporation may agree to modify or restructure the contractual terms of loans to 
borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. The Corporation may modify loans through rate reductions, 
extensions of maturity, interest only payments or payment modifications to better match the timing of cash 
flows due under the modified terms with the cash flows from the borrowers' operations. Loan 
modifications are intended to minimize the economic loss and to avoid foreclosure or repossession of the 
collateral. Loans so modified remain collectively evaluated for determination of expected credit losses, 
unless, during the process of evaluation, it is determined that the loan should be placed on nonaccrual 
status until the Corporation determines that future collection of principal and interest is reasonably 
assured or the loan is otherwise deemed to be collateral dependent. Any modifications of loans to 
borrowers experiencing financial difficulty that are classified as nonaccrual or are otherwise designated as 
collateral dependent are individually evaluated for determination of expected credit losses. The 
Corporation did not modify any loans to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties in 2024 or 2023.  

 
4. Premises and Equipment 

The following summarizes premises and equipment at December 31: 

  2024  2023 
 

Land, buildings, and improvements  $ 4,285,304  $ 4,269,428 
Furniture and fixtures   3,558,795   3,500,755 
       

Total cost   7,844,099   7,770,183 
       
Less accumulated depreciation   6,494,767   6,373,075 
       

Net   $ 1,349,332  $ 1,397,108 
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5. Deposits 

Interest-bearing deposits at December 31 are as follows: 

  2024  2023 
 

NOW and money market accounts  $ 80,538,964  $ 75,112,858 
Savings accounts   53,487,696   51,385,673 
Time deposits   45,866,112   45,643,722 
       

Total  $ 179,892,772  $ 172,142,253 
 

Scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows: 

Years ending December 31:    
2025  $ 39,167,881 
2026   5,299,414 
2027   532,909 
2028   522,144 
2029   343,764 

    
Total  $ 45,866,112 

 
Time deposits that meet or exceed the FDIC insurance limit of $250,000 at December 31, 2024 and 2023 
were approximately $13,390,000 and $15,637,000, respectively.  

 
6. Borrowings 

The Corporation has a maximum borrowing capacity with the FHLB of $70,317,030 at December 31, 
2024, including a line of credit of $32,300,000. There were no borrowings under this line of credit at 
December 31, 2024 and 2023. Advances are secured by certain mortgage loans. 

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Corporation has no fixed rate advances outstanding with the FHLB.  

The Corporation also has a $4,000,000 unsecured line of credit agreement with the Atlantic Community 
Bankers Bank. There were no borrowings under this line of credit at December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

 
7. Income Taxes 

Income tax expense consists of the following:  

  2024  2023 
 

Current  $ 301,876  $ 199,790 
Deferred   14,629   12,174 
       

Total  $ 316,505  $ 211,964 
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The reconciliation between the expected statutory income expense of 21% and the actual tax expense is 
as follows for 2024 and 2023: 

  2024  2023 
 

Federal income tax at statutory rate:  $ 438,958  $ 348,474 
Increase (decrease) resulting from:       

Tax-exempt income   (143,460)   (161,587) 
Other items   21,007   25,077 

       
Income tax expense  $ 316,505  $ 211,964 

 
Effective tax rate  15.14 %  12.77 % 

 
The components of deferred income taxes, net at December 31 are as follows: 

  2024  2023 
 

Unrealized losses on securities available-for-sale  $ 1,962,279  $ 1,877,346 
Allowance for credit losses   282,882   283,627 
Premises and equipment   39,773   44,644 
Deferred compensation and other accrued expenses   8,606   17,121 
Other   (1,098)   (608) 
Prepaid expenses   (7,851)   (7,844) 
Goodwill   (180,967)   (180,967) 
       

Deferred income taxes, net  $ 2,103,624  $ 2,033,319 
 
 
8. Related-Party Transactions 

The Corporation has granted loans to directors, principal officers, principal shareholders and their related 
interests. The following table summarizes activity in these loans: 

  2024  2023 
 

Balance, January 1  $ 69,000  $ 97,000 
New loans   122,000   - 
Repayments   (15,000)   (28,000) 

       
Balance, December 31  $ 176,000  $ 69,000 

 
At December 31, 2024 and 2023, deposits from related parties totaled $1,733,487 and $731,786, 
respectively.  

 
9. Contingencies and Commitments 

There are no material legal proceedings to which the Corporation is a party, except proceedings which 
arise in the normal course of business, which in the opinion of management, will not have a material 
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation. 
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as follows for 2024 and 2023: 
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There are no material legal proceedings to which the Corporation is a party, except proceedings which 
arise in the normal course of business, which in the opinion of management, will not have a material 
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation. 
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10. Dividend Restrictions 

Dividends can be paid by the Bancorp from its assets, which are mainly provided by dividends received 
from the Bank. The Bank is subject to certain restrictions on the dividends that it may declare without prior 
regulatory approval. The Pennsylvania Banking Code provides that cash dividends may be declared and 
paid only out of accumulated net earnings as defined. Cash dividends must be approved by the Federal 
Reserve Bank if the total of all cash dividends declared by the Bank in any calendar year, including the 
proposed cash dividend, exceeds the total of the Bank's net profit for that year plus its retained net profits 
from the preceding two years. Under this formula, the Bank can declare dividends to the Bancorp at 
December 31, 2024 equal to approximately $3.2 million. In addition, dividends paid by the Bank to the 
Bancorp would be prohibited if the effect thereof would cause the Bank's capital to be reduced below 
applicable minimum capital requirements.  

 
11. Regulatory Capital 

The Bank is subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. 
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional 
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the 
consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for 
prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative 
measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory 
accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by 
the regulators about components, risk weighting and other factors.  

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the maintenance of 
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the following tables) of total capital, Tier 1 capital (as defined in 
the regulations) and common equity Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average 
assets. A capital conservation buffer of 2.50%, comprised of common equity Tier 1 capital, is also 
established above the regulatory minimum capital requirements and must be maintained to avoid 
limitations on capital distributions. Management believes, as of December 31, 2024, that the Bank  
meets all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject. 

As of December 31, 2024, the most recent notification from regulatory agencies categorized the Bank as 
well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well 
capitalized, an institution must maintain minimum ratios as set forth in the following tables. There are no 
conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed those categories. 
The Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios are as follows: 

  2024 

  Actual  
For Capital Adequacy 

Purposes 
 

To be Well Capitalized 
  Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio 
 
Total capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) 
 

$ 25,930,034  20.66 %  $ 10,040,480   8.0 %  $ 12,550,600   10.0 % 
                   

Common equity Tier 1 
(to risk-weighted assets) 

 
 24,572,979  19.58    5,647,770   4.5    8,157,890   6.5  

                   

Tier 1 capital 
(to risk-weighted assets) 

 
 24,572,979  19.58    7,530,360   6.0    10,040,480   8.0  

                   

Tier 1 capital 
(to average-assets) 

 
 24,572,979  9.14    10,756,200   4.0    13,445,250   5.0  
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  2023 

  Actual  
For Capital Adequacy 

Purposes 
 

To be Well Capitalized 
  Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio 
 
Total capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) 
 

$ 24,687,687  19.98 %  $ 9,882,800   8.0 %  $ 12,353,500   10.0 % 
                   
Common equity Tier 1 

(to risk-weighted assets) 
 

 23,327,090  18.88    5,559,075   4.5    8,029,775   6.5  
                   
Tier 1 capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) 
 

 23,327,090  18.88    7,412,100   6.0    9,882,800   8.0  
                   
Tier 1 capital 

(to average-assets) 
 

 23,327,090  9.10    10,255,160   4.0    12,818,950   5.0  
 

The Federal Reserve Bank has established capital guidelines for bank holding companies. These 
guidelines allow small bank holding companies, as defined, an exemption from regulatory capital 
requirements. The Bancorp meets the eligibility criteria and is exempt from regulatory capital 
requirements. 

 
12. Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

Fair value is defined as an exit price representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or 
settle a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. A three-level hierarchy exists for fair 
value measurements based upon the inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability. 

Level 1 - Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2 - Valuation is determined from quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; 
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; or inputs that 
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly through market corroboration, for 
substantially the full term of the financial instrument; and 

Level 3 - Valuation is derived from model-based and other techniques in which at least one significant 
input is unobservable, and which may be based on the Corporation's own estimates about the 
assumptions that a market participant would use to value the asset or liability.  

An asset's or liability's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement.  

The following table sets forth the Corporation's financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis by level within the fair value hierarchy:  

  2024 
  Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 
 
Securities available-for-sale:             

U.S. Treasury   $ 5,408,828  $ -  $ 5,408,828  $ - 
U.S. government agencies    985,743   -   985,743   - 
Obligations of states and 

political subdivisions   23,073,345   -   23,073,345   - 
             

Mortgage-backed securities 
available-for-sale   57,731,759   -   57,731,759   - 

             

  $ 87,199,675  $ -  $ 87,199,675  $ - 
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The Bank is subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. 
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional 
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the 
consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for 
prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative 
measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory 
accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by 
the regulators about components, risk weighting and other factors.  

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the maintenance of 
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the following tables) of total capital, Tier 1 capital (as defined in 
the regulations) and common equity Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average 
assets. A capital conservation buffer of 2.50%, comprised of common equity Tier 1 capital, is also 
established above the regulatory minimum capital requirements and must be maintained to avoid 
limitations on capital distributions. Management believes, as of December 31, 2024, that the Bank  
meets all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject. 

As of December 31, 2024, the most recent notification from regulatory agencies categorized the Bank as 
well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well 
capitalized, an institution must maintain minimum ratios as set forth in the following tables. There are no 
conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed those categories. 
The Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios are as follows: 

  2024 

  Actual  
For Capital Adequacy 

Purposes 
 

To be Well Capitalized 
  Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio 
 
Total capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) 
 

$ 25,930,034  20.66 %  $ 10,040,480   8.0 %  $ 12,550,600   10.0 % 
                   

Common equity Tier 1 
(to risk-weighted assets) 

 
 24,572,979  19.58    5,647,770   4.5    8,157,890   6.5  

                   

Tier 1 capital 
(to risk-weighted assets) 

 
 24,572,979  19.58    7,530,360   6.0    10,040,480   8.0  

                   

Tier 1 capital 
(to average-assets) 

 
 24,572,979  9.14    10,756,200   4.0    13,445,250   5.0  
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  2023 

  Actual  
For Capital Adequacy 

Purposes 
 

To be Well Capitalized 
  Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio 
 
Total capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) 
 

$ 24,687,687  19.98 %  $ 9,882,800   8.0 %  $ 12,353,500   10.0 % 
                   
Common equity Tier 1 

(to risk-weighted assets) 
 

 23,327,090  18.88    5,559,075   4.5    8,029,775   6.5  
                   
Tier 1 capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) 
 

 23,327,090  18.88    7,412,100   6.0    9,882,800   8.0  
                   
Tier 1 capital 

(to average-assets) 
 

 23,327,090  9.10    10,255,160   4.0    12,818,950   5.0  
 

The Federal Reserve Bank has established capital guidelines for bank holding companies. These 
guidelines allow small bank holding companies, as defined, an exemption from regulatory capital 
requirements. The Bancorp meets the eligibility criteria and is exempt from regulatory capital 
requirements. 

 
12. Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

Fair value is defined as an exit price representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or 
settle a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. A three-level hierarchy exists for fair 
value measurements based upon the inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability. 

Level 1 - Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2 - Valuation is determined from quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; 
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; or inputs that 
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly through market corroboration, for 
substantially the full term of the financial instrument; and 

Level 3 - Valuation is derived from model-based and other techniques in which at least one significant 
input is unobservable, and which may be based on the Corporation's own estimates about the 
assumptions that a market participant would use to value the asset or liability.  

An asset's or liability's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement.  

The following table sets forth the Corporation's financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis by level within the fair value hierarchy:  

  2024 
  Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 
 
Securities available-for-sale:             

U.S. Treasury   $ 5,408,828  $ -  $ 5,408,828  $ - 
U.S. government agencies    985,743   -   985,743   - 
Obligations of states and 

political subdivisions   23,073,345   -   23,073,345   - 
             

Mortgage-backed securities 
available-for-sale   57,731,759   -   57,731,759   - 

             

  $ 87,199,675  $ -  $ 87,199,675  $ - 
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  2023 
  Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 
 
Securities available-for-sale:             

U.S. Treasury   $ 2,943,750  $ -  $ 2,943,750  $ - 
U.S. government agencies    11,879,632   -   11,879,632   - 
Obligations of states and 

political subdivisions   25,261,017   -   25,261,017   - 
             
Mortgage-backed securities 

available-for-sale   52,806,579   -   52,806,579   - 
             

  $ 92,890,978  $ -  $ 92,890,978  $ - 
 

For financial assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, the fair value measurements by level 
within the fair value hierarchy used at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:  

  2024 

  Total  

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical 
Assets 

(Level 1)  

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2)  

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

 
Loans individually evaluated for 

credit loss  $ 776,567  $ -  $ -  $ 776,567 
  2023 

  Total  

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical 
Assets 

(Level 1)  

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2)  

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

 
Loans individually evaluated for 

credit loss  $ 58,731  $ -  $ -  $ 58,731 
 

Quantitative information about Level 3 fair value measurements at December 31, 2024 and 2023 is 
included in the table below: 

  2024 
  Quantitative Information About Level 3 Fair Value Measurements 

  
Fair Value 
Estimate  

Valuation 
Techniques  

Unobservable 
Inputs  

Estimated 
Range 

 
Loans individually evaluated for 

credit loss  $ 776,567  
Appraisal of 

collateral  
Appraisal 

adjustments  5-15% 
          

       
Liquidation 
expenses  5-15% 
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  2023 
  Quantitative Information About Level 3 Fair Value Measurements 

  
Fair Value 
Estimate  

Valuation 
Techniques  

Unobservable 
Inputs  

Estimated 
Range 

 
Loans individually evaluated for 

credit loss  $ 58,731  
Appraisal of 

collateral  
Appraisal 

adjustments  5-15% 
          

       
Liquidation 
expenses  5-15% 

 
In addition to the disclosures of financial instruments recorded at fair value, GAAP requires the disclosure 
of the estimated fair value of all the Corporation's financial instruments. The majority of the Corporation's 
assets and liabilities are considered financial instruments. However, many of these instruments lack an 
available market. In addition, the Corporation's general practice and intent is to hold its financial 
instruments to maturity. The Corporation has considered the fair value measurement criteria as required 
under the accounting standard relating to fair value measurement as noted above. Fair value estimates 
have been determined based on the methodologies management considers most appropriate for each 
financial instrument.  

The following are the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Corporation's financial 
instruments as of December 31 (in thousands): 

  2024 

  
Carrying 

Value  
Fair 

Value  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 
 
Financial assets:                

Cash and due from banks  $ 9,780  $ 9,780  $ 9,780  $ -  $ - 
Interest-bearing deposits with 

banks   27,577   27,577   27,577       
Investment securities   87,200   87,200   -   87,200   - 
Loans, net   126,320   118,572   -   -   118,572 
Restricted stock   330   330   -   330   - 
Accrued interest receivable   707   707   -   707   - 
                

Financial liabilities:                
Deposits   241,915   213,432   -   213,432   - 
Accrued interest payable   138   138   -   138   - 

 
  2023 

  
Carrying 

Value  
Fair 

Value  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 
 
Financial assets:                

Cash and due from banks  $ 6,390  $ 6,390  $ 6,390  $ -  $ - 
Interest-bearing deposits with 

banks   17,422   17,422   17,422   -   - 
Investment securities   92,891   92,891   -   92,891   - 
Loans, net   120,562   110,338   -   -   110,338 
Restricted stock   347   347   -   347   - 
Accrued interest receivable   727   727   -   727   - 
                

Financial liabilities:                
Deposits   230,157   209,309   -   209,309   - 
Accrued interest payable   135   135   -   135   - 
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  2023 
  Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 
 
Securities available-for-sale:             

U.S. Treasury   $ 2,943,750  $ -  $ 2,943,750  $ - 
U.S. government agencies    11,879,632   -   11,879,632   - 
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  $ 92,890,978  $ -  $ 92,890,978  $ - 
 

For financial assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, the fair value measurements by level 
within the fair value hierarchy used at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:  

  2024 

  Total  

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical 
Assets 

(Level 1)  

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2)  

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

 
Loans individually evaluated for 

credit loss  $ 776,567  $ -  $ -  $ 776,567 
  2023 

  Total  

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical 
Assets 

(Level 1)  

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2)  

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

 
Loans individually evaluated for 

credit loss  $ 58,731  $ -  $ -  $ 58,731 
 

Quantitative information about Level 3 fair value measurements at December 31, 2024 and 2023 is 
included in the table below: 

  2024 
  Quantitative Information About Level 3 Fair Value Measurements 

  
Fair Value 
Estimate  

Valuation 
Techniques  

Unobservable 
Inputs  

Estimated 
Range 

 
Loans individually evaluated for 

credit loss  $ 776,567  
Appraisal of 

collateral  
Appraisal 

adjustments  5-15% 
          

       
Liquidation 
expenses  5-15% 
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  2023 
  Quantitative Information About Level 3 Fair Value Measurements 

  
Fair Value 
Estimate  

Valuation 
Techniques  

Unobservable 
Inputs  

Estimated 
Range 

 
Loans individually evaluated for 

credit loss  $ 58,731  
Appraisal of 

collateral  
Appraisal 

adjustments  5-15% 
          

       
Liquidation 
expenses  5-15% 

 
In addition to the disclosures of financial instruments recorded at fair value, GAAP requires the disclosure 
of the estimated fair value of all the Corporation's financial instruments. The majority of the Corporation's 
assets and liabilities are considered financial instruments. However, many of these instruments lack an 
available market. In addition, the Corporation's general practice and intent is to hold its financial 
instruments to maturity. The Corporation has considered the fair value measurement criteria as required 
under the accounting standard relating to fair value measurement as noted above. Fair value estimates 
have been determined based on the methodologies management considers most appropriate for each 
financial instrument.  

The following are the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Corporation's financial 
instruments as of December 31 (in thousands): 

  2024 

  
Carrying 

Value  
Fair 

Value  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 
 
Financial assets:                

Cash and due from banks  $ 9,780  $ 9,780  $ 9,780  $ -  $ - 
Interest-bearing deposits with 

banks   27,577   27,577   27,577       
Investment securities   87,200   87,200   -   87,200   - 
Loans, net   126,320   118,572   -   -   118,572 
Restricted stock   330   330   -   330   - 
Accrued interest receivable   707   707   -   707   - 
                

Financial liabilities:                
Deposits   241,915   213,432   -   213,432   - 
Accrued interest payable   138   138   -   138   - 

 
  2023 

  
Carrying 

Value  
Fair 

Value  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 
 
Financial assets:                

Cash and due from banks  $ 6,390  $ 6,390  $ 6,390  $ -  $ - 
Interest-bearing deposits with 

banks   17,422   17,422   17,422   -   - 
Investment securities   92,891   92,891   -   92,891   - 
Loans, net   120,562   110,338   -   -   110,338 
Restricted stock   347   347   -   347   - 
Accrued interest receivable   727   727   -   727   - 
                

Financial liabilities:                
Deposits   230,157   209,309   -   209,309   - 
Accrued interest payable   135   135   -   135   - 
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A financial asset or liability's classification within the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 

All investment securities are measured at fair value using quoted prices from an independent third party 
that provide valuation services, such as matrix pricing, for similar assets, with similar terms in actively 
traded markets. 

 
13. Financial Instruments With Off-Balance-Sheet Risk 

The Corporation is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of 
business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments 
to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of 
credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet. The Corporation's 
exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amounts of these commitments. The Corporation 
follows the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments. 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of 
any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to 
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash 
requirements. Unfunded commitments under lines of credit are commitments for possible future 
extensions of credit to existing customers. These lines of credit may or may not be collateralized and 
usually contain a specified maturity date and may not be drawn upon to the total extent to which the 
Corporation is committed. 

Standby letters of credit written are conditional commitments issued by the Corporation to guarantee the 
performance of a customer to a third party. Those letters of credit are primarily issued to support public 
and private borrowing arrangements. Essentially all letters of credit issued have expiration dates within 
one year. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in 
extending loans.  

To reduce credit risk related to the use of credit-related financial instruments, the Corporation might deem 
it necessary to obtain collateral. The amount and nature of the collateral obtained is based on the 
Corporation's credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies but may include cash, securities, 
accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment and real estate. The Corporation has not 
incurred any losses on its commitments in either 2024 or 2023. 

Financial instruments whose contract amount represents credit risk were as follows: 

  2024  2023 
 

Commitments to extend credit  $ 18,080,000  $ 24,138,000 
Standby letters of credit   19,000   442,000 
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1855 
 

First Chartered Bank 
in Carbon County, 

Mauch Chunk Bank. 
 

(The current site of  
the Broadway Office, 
formerly operated as  
the Savings Shoppe.) 

1863 
 

First National Bank  
of Mauch Chunk was 
organized and a new 
building was erected. 

1902 
 

After four decades as  
a prosperous bank,  
it consolidates with  

the Linderman 
National Bank. 

1955 
 

Mauch Chunk  
National Bank 

consolidates with 
Citizens National 

Bank of East Mauch 
Chunk and forms the  

Jim Thorpe  
National Bank. 

1988 
 

Jim Thorpe National Bank becomes a 
subsidiary company of the newly 
incorporated JTNB Bancorp, Inc. 

1989 
 

A new branch office is erected 
in Penn Forest Township. 

 

 
 

2001 
 

A building is 
purchased and an 

office is opened on  
Fourth Street, 

Lehighton. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2009 
 

JTNB acquires the 
Nesquehoning 

Savings Bank with 
two offices located 

in Nesquehoning and 
Coaldale. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2011 
 

A building is 
purchased in  

Lansford and the 
Coaldale Office  

is relocated. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2013 
 

JTNB converts to  
a State-Chartered 
Bank and becomes  

the Jim Thorpe 
Neighborhood Bank. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

              

 


